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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

UNTIED STATES OF ~MER~Ct Q ~ ~~i~. No.~ /{;J-;lf; fj (A_GT) 
v. ~ \ : 

0 
~ G a. t\\\'O : 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78ff 

P \\ ';): \.!\. 17 C.F.R. § 240. lOb-5 
ROBERT SPALLINA ~~~~. ~ : 18 U.S.C. § 2 

~"\.s 
0 ~~- '!/.. ~ ~i-~ \\.\,.\~ ~J;.'i" 
~ cINFORMATION 

COUNT ONE 
(Securities Fraud) 

The defendant having waived in open court prosecution by indictment, the 

United States Attorney for the District of New Jersey charges: 

Background 

1. At all times relevant to this Information: 

a. Defendant ROBERT SPALLINA was an attorney who resided in 

Florida. 

b. The NASDAQ Stock Market, or "NASDAQ," was the largest 

electronic equity securities trading market in the United States and was the 

second largest equities-based exchange in the world based on market 

capitalization. NASDAQ did not have a central trading floor. Instead, it relied 

on computer servers to facilitate all trading activity. Since at least 2006, 

NASDAQ maintained computer servers in or around Carteret, New Jersey. 

c. Gilead Sciences Inc. ("Gilead") was a biotechnology company 

'based in Foster City, California, and was engaged in the business of developing, 
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manufacturing and marketing antiviral drugs to treat patients infected with HIV, 

hepatitis Band influenza. Gilead's stock was registered with the U.S. Securities 

and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), and was publicly traded on the NASDAQ 

stock exchange. 

d. Pharmasset Inc. ("Pharmasset") was a pharmaceutical 

company based in Princeton, New Jersey, and was engaged in the business of 

developing, manufacturing and marketing antiviral drugs. From in or about 

April 2007 through in or about January 2012, Pharmasset's stock was registered 

with the SEC, and was listed on the NASDAQ stock exchange under the ficker 

symbol "VRUS." 

e. The "Director" served as a member of Pharmasset's Board of · 

Directors during the relevant time period, and was a client of defendant 

SPALLINA. 

The Pharmasset Inside Information 

2. On or about September 2, 2011, Gilead made an initial offer to 

acquire Pharmasset for $100 per share in cash. Thereafter, in or about 

November 2011, Gilead increased its offer for Pharmasset to the $130 per share 

range. Both of these offers constituted material nonpublic information and 

were communicated to Pharmasset's board of directors and key executives, 

including the Director. 

3. On or about November 8, 2011, during an estate planning meeting 

with defendant SPALLINA and, in the context of seeking estate planning advice, 
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the Director confidentially informed defendant SPALLINA that Pharmasset was 

going to be sold and discussed the approximate sale price (the "Pharmasset 

Inside Information"). 

4. After receiving the Pharmasset Inside Information on November 8, 

2011, as discussed above, defendant SPALLINA: (a) purchased shares of 

Pharmasset on November 8, 2011; ·(b) purchased additional shares of 

Pharmasset on November 9, 2011; and (c) passed the Pharmasset Inside 

Information to two other individuals (the "Tippees"), each of whom purchased 

shares and/or options of Pharmasset. 

5. At approximately 7:00 a.m. on Noverpber 21, 2011, Gilead publicly 

announced that it had entered into an agreement to acquire Pharmasset for 

approximately $11 billion, or $137 per share in cash. The purchase_ price. 

represented an approximately 89% premium over Pharmasset's closing price of 

$72.67 on November 18, 2011. In response to the announcement, 

Pharmasset's stock price increased to $134.14 per share at the close of trading 

on November 21, 2011. Prior to the November 21, 2011 public announcement, 

Gilead's offers to acquire Pharmasset and its impending acquisition of 

Pharmasset at $137 were not generally known to the public. 

6. On or about November 21, 2011, following the public announcement 

of Gilead's acquisition of Pharmasset, defendant SPALLINA and the Tippees· sold 

Pharmasset shares and options they had purchased between November 8, 2011, 

and November 18, 2011, for total illegal profits of approximately $200,000. 

3 

Case 3:16-cr-00269-AET   Document 1   Filed 06/09/16   Page 3 of 8 PageID: 3



7. In trading on and passing the Pharmasset Inside Information to 

others, defendant SPALLINA violated (i) fiduciary and other duties of trust and 

confidence he owed to the Director; and (ii) expectations of confidentiality held by 

the Director. 

Securities Fraud 

8. From on or about November 8, 2011, through on or about November 

21, 2011, in the District of New Jersey and elsewhere, defendant 

ROBERT SPALLINA 

did willfully and knowingly, directly and indirectly, by the use of means and 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, and of the mails, and of facilities of 

national securities exchanges, would and did use and employ, in connection with 

the purchase and sale of securities, manipulative and deceptive devices and 

contrivances, in violation of Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 

240. lOb-5, by: (a) employing devices, schemes and artifices to defraud; (b) 

making untrue statements of material fact and omitting to state material facts 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the 

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaging in 

'acts, practices and courses of business.which operated and would operate as a 

·fraud and deceit upon persons, namely by executing and causing others to 
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execute the securities transactions described in paragraphs 4 and 6, in whole or 

in part, on material nonpublic information 

In violation of Title 15, United States Code, Sections 78j(b) and 78ff, and 

Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 240.JOb-5, and Title 18, United 

States Code, Section 2. 
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATION 

1. The allegations contained in Count One of this Information are 

realleged and incorporated by reference as though set forth in full herein for the 

purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 

981(a)(l)(C), and Title 28, United.States Code, Section 2461(c). 

2. Upon conviction of the offense charged in Count One of this 

Information, defendant SPALLINA shall forfeit to the ·united States, pursuant to 

Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(l)(C) and Title 28, United States 

Code, Section 2461(c), all property, real and personal, that constitutes or is 

derived from proceeds traceable to the commission of the offense, and all 

property traceable to such property. 

3. If by any act or omission of defendant SPALLINA any of the property 

subject to forfeiture herein: 

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; 

b .. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party; 

c. has been placed beyond thejurisdiction of the court; 

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or 

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be 

subdivided without difficulty, 

the United States shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property pursuant to 

Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), as incorporated by 28 U.S.t. § 

2461(c). 
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All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(l)(C), and Title 

28, United States Code, Section 2461(c). 

0 
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CASE NUMBER: ___ _ 

United States District Court 
District of New Jersey 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. 

ROBERT SPALLINA 

INFORMATION FOR 

15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78ff 
17 C.F.R. § 240. lOb-5 

18 U.S.C. § 2 

PAUL J. FISHMAN· 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY, NEWARK, NEW JERSEY 

ANDREW KOGAN 

ASSISTANT U.S. ATroRNEY 

NEWARK, NEW JERSEY 

973.645.2700 
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RECEiVED 

JUN 0 9'. 2016 
United States District Court 

For the District of New Jersey AT 8:30 M 
WILLIAM T. WALSH 

CLERK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA WAIVER OF INDICTMENT 

v. llrl.bCf lA61)- J/ 
ROBERT SPALLINA 

I, Robert Spallina, the above-named defendant, who is charged with 

securities fraud, in violation ofTitle 15, United States Code, Sections 78j(b) and 

78ff and Title 17, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 240. lOb-5, being advised 

of the nature of the charges, the proposed Information, and my rights, hereby 

waive in open court on June 9, 2016, prosecution by indictment and consent 

that the proceeding may be by information rather than by indictment. 

Before: 
Honorable Anne . Thompson 
United States District Judge 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

UNITEO STATES OF AMERICA ~ ~ Q 

·~ \ 
v._ ~ G ·. · .. ~~ 

-Meg:TCrim. No. I b- a&> q ~ 
APPLICATION FOR PERMISSION 
TO ENTER PLEA OF GUILTY 

·-v \~· ~ 

~ oLui srJl.n,,, ~~ ~ 
. ~o ~t: ':\..«:,«' 

(Defendant's Name) ~ ~~'"'\_; Cl 

(Defendant with Counsel) . 

__ l\_o...::b .... f-cl..___~+=Ji) .... •,...( l....,1c ..... • f!!.-._ ........... ...__, hereby certifies as follows: 
(Defendant's Nam~) ··· · 

I. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

My full name is ~O~f!t sr~ll1~4 
against me be held 1n t at name. 

and I request that all proceedings 

I understand that the Constitution and la~s of the United ~tates.guaraz:itee me th~ right to be 
represented by a ~awyer at every stage_ m these proceedings, · •n.cludmg any tnal on these 
cnarges, and that 1f I cannot afford to lure a lawyer, the Court will provide one for me. 

I hav_e a lawyer w_h. o. is representing me in this proceeding. My lawyer's name is 
L a.~rG"'4 ~-. Lle~f'-eJL . · . I am satisfied that I have had enough time 

to discuss ffi1s matter with my lawyer. 

English [IS] flS t~OT) my native lanpl!ge. M_y. formal education stopped after [grade] 
Lt-M . . I am presently [UNEMP]...OYED] [E~tPLOVBD] as a . 
----------- (occupat1on). 

I have taken ENQ] [THE FOLLOWING] drugs or medication within the past seventy-two 
hours: AhvQcQ 1 X444lto: Am\o4t,pio? 1 Zycb.L, A\~4 \icol 1 Qv4r, Lt»'"'rro • 

Mo\..l~" L Tll'~~~ J . . 

I [llAYE~ [H~ VE NEVER] been a patient in a mental hospital or institution. I EOOi [DO 
NOT] believe that at the present time I am mentally ill or mentally incompetent in any 
respect. 

I received a copy of the fCOMPLAffff] [ff4DIC"FMB>ff] [INFORMA Ti ON) before being 
called upon to plead. I have read and discussed it with my lawyer. I. understand that the 
substance of the charge(s) against me is that I: <. Ott\!t)i He-~ .. . s e '-'4hht.> W4kd 

(iMidt( hd1~ ) . . 

[add separate sheets if necessary] 

DNJ.CR·12 (Rav. 08/2010) 
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W AIYER OF INDICTMENT (IF APPLICABLE) 

8. My lawyer has explained to me that I have a constitutional right to be charged by an 
indictment of a grand jury but that I can waive that right and consent to being charged 
through a criminal Information filed by the United States Attorney. 

9. I understand that unless I waive indictment I may not be charged with a felony unless a grand 
jury finds by return of an indictment that there is probable cause to believe that a ' 
crime has been committed and that I committed it. 

IO. . I also understand that if I do not waive indictment, the government may present the case to 
the grand jury and request the grand jury to indict me. 

11. I understand that a grand jury is composed of at least 16 and not more than 23 persons, that 
at least 12 grand jurors must find that there is probable cause to believe that I committed the 
crime. I also understand that the grand jury may or may not indict me. 

12. I further understand that by waiving indictment by the grand jury, the case will proceed 
against me on the United States Attorney's Information as though I had been indicted. 

13. My attorney has discussed the nature of the charge~ against me and waiving my right to 
indictment thereon by grand jury, I fully understand those rights, and I wish to waive 
indictment by grand jury. 

14. My decision to waive indictment by grand jury is made knowingly and voluntarily, and no 
threats or promises have been made to induce me to waive indictment. 

THE GUILTY PLEA 

15. I have told my lawyer all the facts and circumstances known to me about the charge(s) set 
forth in the (COMPLAINT] [lt~DICTMEtfft [INFORMATION]. 

16. I am satisfied that my lawyer understands the information which I have provided, and that 
my lawyer has counseled and advised me on the nature of each charge and on all possible 
defenses that I might have in this case. 

17. In addition, my lawyer has explained to me, and I understand, that if I enter a plea of NOT 
GUILTY (or persisted in my plea of NOT GUILTY), under the Constitution and laws of the 
United States I would be entitled to a speedy and public trial by a jury of twelve persons on 
the charge~ contained in this [C0~4PbAINT] [I~!E>ICTMENT] [INFORMATION]. 

18. My lawyer has explained to me, and I understand, that at such a trial the jury would be told 
by the judge that I am presumed to be innocent, and that the Government would be required 
to prove me guilty of the charge~ against me beyond a reasonable doubt. I understand that 
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I would not have to prove that I am innocent, and that I could not be convicted unless all 
twelve jurors voted unanimously for conviction. 

19. My lawyer has explained to me, and I understand, that if I went to trial on these charge~, 
the Government would have to produce in open court the witnesses against me, and that my 
lawyer could confront and cross-examine them and object to evidence offered by the 
Government. 

20. My lawyer has further explained to me, and I understand, that I have the right to produce 
witnesses and could offer evidence in my defense at a trial on these charg~, and that I 
would have the right, ifl so chose, to testify on my own behalf at that trial; but if I chose not 
to testify, the jury could draw no suggestion or inference of guilt from that fact. 

21. My lawyer has explained to me, and I understand, that if I plead GUILTY to any charge~ 
in this [COMPLA~'T] [~JQICT~4fi~T] [INFORMATION] and the judge accepts my plea, 
I WAIVE MY RIGHT TO TRIAL AND THE OTHER RIGHTS SET FORTH IN 
PARAGRAPHS 17, 18, 19 and 20 ABOVE. I am aware and understand that if my GUILTY 
plea is accepted, there will be no trial and a judgment of GUILTY will be entered after 
which, the judge, upon consideration of my presentence report, will impose punishment upon 
me. I understand that ifl plead GUILTY, the judge may impose the same punishment as if 
I bad pleaded "not guilty", went to trial and was convicted by a jury. 

22. My lawyer has also explained to me, and I understand, that if I plead GUILTY, I WAIVE 
MY RIGHT NOT TO INCRIMINATE MYSELF. I understand that the judge will ask me 
what I did and I will have to acknowledge my guilt as charged by setting forth my actions so 
that the judge is satisfied that I am, indeed, guilty. I understand that any statements I make 
at the time I plead GUILTY, if untrue and made under oath, can be the basis of a perjury 
prosecution against me. 

SENTENCING ISSUES 

23. My lawyer has informed me, and I understand, that the maximum punishment which the law 
provides for the offens~ charged in this [COMPLAitff] [INDICTME:N"f] [INFORMATION] 
is: 

A MAXIMUM OF l 0 _ years imprisonment and a fine of$ S ,..; /J,.a for the offense(s) 
charged in Count£s1 .1. . My lawyer has further explained, and I understand, that there 
is [NO] fAi mandatory minimum punishment of __years imprisonment and [NO] (*] mandatory 
miniuin fine of$ for the offense"' charged in Count~ .L. -----
I understand that if I plead GUILTY to Count(.81 1 of the (COMPLAJ~tF] 
fl>JLlICTMe>J+] [INFORMATION], I face a maximum sentence on those Count'8? of .i D 
years imprisonment, plus an aggregate fine of$ f .,;/1.61 My lawyer has additionally explained, and 
I understand, that in addition to or in lieu of the penalties already discussed, I may be ordered to 
make restitution to any victim of the offense and that the Court may require me to make a 
restitution in services instead of money or to make restitution to a designated third person or 
organization instead of the victim. I understand that in detennining whether to order restitution 
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and the amount of restitution the Court will consider the amount of the loss sustained by any 
victim as a result of the offense, my financial resources, the financial needs and earning ability of 
my dependents, and any other factors as the Court deems appropriate. 

I understand that I will be assessed $100 for each felony upon which I am sentenced and $25 for 
each misdemeanor, if any. 

24. I hereby declare that no officer or agent of any branch of government, (Federal, State or Local), 
nor my lawyer, nor any other person, has made any promise or suggestion of any kind to me, or 
within my knowledge to anyone else, that I will receive a lighter sentence, or probation, or any 
other fonn of leniency if I plead GUILTY. My lawyer has explained, and I understand, that only 
the judge may decide what punishment I shall receive, and that if any person has told me 
otherwise, that person is not telling me the truth. 

25. I understand that the sentence to be imposed upon me is 'within the sole discretion of the 
sentencing judge, subject to the provisions of the Sentencing Refonn Act of 1984. 

26. . I understand that in deciding what sentence to impose upon me, the sentencing judge is required 
to consider the maximum and minimum prison tenns, fines and tenns of supervised release 
recommended under the Sentencing Guidelines. I understand that the Sentencing Guidelines may 
authorize departures from the maximum anci minimum Guidelines recommendations under certain 
circumstances. 

27. I understand that the Sentencing Guidelines are advisory, and that the sentencing judge must also 
consider the other statutory factors identified in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) in deciding what sentence to 
impose. I understand that the judge has the authority to impose a sentence more severe (up to the 
statutory maximum) or less severe than the sentencing range recommended by the Guidelines. 

28. I have discussed with my attorney how the Sentencing Guidelines might apply to my case. 

29. I understand that the Court will not be able to detennine the sentence for my case until after the 
Presentence Report has been completed and both I and the Government have had an opportunity 
to read the report and challenge any facts reported by the probation officer. 

30. I understand that the Court may be bound to impose a fine in accordance with statutory 
requirements. 

31. I understand that parole has been abolished and if I am sentenced to prison I will not be released 
on parole. 

32. I further understand that the Court [SHALL] [MAY] impose a tenn of supervised release to follow 
any tenn of imprisonment and that any violation of that term of supervised release may result in 
an additional term of imprisonment. I understand that I am subject to a tenn of supervised release 
of up to .1_ years, the statutory maximum period of supervised release for the crime(s) to which 
I am pleading guilty. 
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I further understand that the provisions of 21 U.S.C. § , which provide for a mandatory 
minimum term of supervised release of __ years, ~ [DO NOT] apply to my case. 

33. I understand that I will have no right to withdraw my plea on the grounds that anyone's prediction 
as to the Guidelines range or expectation of sentence proves inaccurate. 

34. My lawyer has explained to me, and I understand, that if I am not a citizen of the United States, 
my plea of GUILTY to the charged offense.£sr(MA Y] [WILL LIKELY] result in my being subject 
to separate immigration law proceedings to have me removed from the United States by making 
me deportable, excludable, or inadmissible, or ending my naturalization. 

35. My lawyer has explained to me, and I understand, that if the charged offense(s) is a sex offense 
under42U.S.C. § 16911(5), mypleaofGUILTY [MAY] [WILLUK:ELY] result in a requirement 
that I register as a sex offender under Federal and State law, and I will be subject to the registration 
law's requirements and penalties. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

36. I hereby declare that I have not been forced, coerced or threatened in any manner by any petson 
to plead GUILTY to these charge(s). Nor have I been told that ifl refuse to plead GUILTY, other 
persons will be prosecuted. 

37. There [HAS] fIIAS t•OT] been a plea agreement entered into between me and the United States 
Attorney, by Assistant United States Attorney Al)d.cew D. K•f '0 · (name). 

[ ] The plea agreement DOES NOT exist in written form. 
[X1 The plea agreement DOES exist in written form. I have read it or have had it read to me in 

E oJ\.1 b (LANGUAGE). My lawyer has explained it to me and I understand it. 

38. The substance of the plea agreement is: r w, II f f te,4 j ": /h, fto \, Ibfl)frnqh~ . 
Iv• .!M y\. u<J'l "'"' I \.. ~ C • " f b t 4f (, 10 bk l!ll' I . 

39. The plea agreement [DOES]EDOES t~OT] contain stipulations agreed to by the parties. 

IF APPLICABLE, CHOOSE ONE OF THE FOLLOWING: 

[/ I understand that my plea agreement sets forth a Guidelines calculation which I agree is 
the total Guidelines offense level applicable to me in this case. I further understand that 
I have waived the right to argue that the sentencingjudge should impose a sentence below 
the range that results from this offense level, and that the government has waived the right 
to argue for a sentence above the range that results from this offense level. 
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[] 

[ 1 

I understand that my pJea agreement sets forth a Guidelines calculation which I agree is 
the totaJ Guidelines offense JeveJ applicable to me in this case. I further understand that 
with the exception of arguments regarding a departure as set forth in Paragraph __ of 
Schedule A to the plea agreement, I have waived the right to argue that the sentencing 
judge should impose a sentence below the range that results from this offense level, and 
the government has waived the right to argue for a sentence above the range that results 
from this offense level. 

The plea agreement contains stipulations regarding certain facts. I understand that if the 
sentencing court accepts a factual stipulation set forth in the plea agreement, both I and the 
government have waived the right to file an appeal, collateral attack, writ, or motion 
claiming that the sentencing court erred in doing do. 

40. I understand that my plea agreement [PROVIDES][DOES NOT PROVIDE] that under certain 
circumstances I have waived my right to appeal or collaterally attack the sentence imposed in this 
case. 

4 J. My lawyer has explained to me, and I understand, that if the judge accepts from GUILTY plea 
under the plea agreement, including the government's proposal to dismiss charges or to not bring 
other charges, the judge is not bound to follow the other terms of the plea agreement, including 
the stipulations recommending that a particular sentence or sentencing range is appropriate or that 
a particular provision of the Guidelines does or does not apply. I understand that if the judge does 
not follow one or all of the other terms of the plea agreement, including the stipulations, I will 
have no right to withdraw my GUILTY plea, even if the disposition of tny case may be less 
favorable than that proposed in the plea agreement. 

42. I believe that my lawyer has done all that anyone could do to counsel and assist me, AND I AM 
SATISFIED WITH THE ADVICE AND HELP MY LA WYER HAS GIVEN ME. 

43. I know the judge will not permit anyone to plead GUILTY who claims to be innocent, and with 
that in mind and because I am GUILTY, I respectfully request that the Court accept my plea of 
GUILTY and to have the Clerk enter my plea of GUILTY as follows: 

To Countc,1 __ 1 __ of this [COMPLAIN'f~ [ll~DICTMENT] [INFORMATION]. 

44. I offer my plea of GUILTY freely and voluntarily and of my own accord with full understanding 
of all matters set forth in the ~0~4PL UNT] [INDICTMENT] [INFORMATION], in this 
application, and in the certification of my lawyer which is attached to this application. 

45. I further declare that I wish to waive the reading of the [COMPLAJ;NT] [1~4DICTMENT}­
[INFORMATION] in open court, and I request the Court to enter my plea of GUILTY as set forth 
in Paragraph 43, above. 
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46. The following petson(s), if any, assisted me in completing this application: -------
Ltciwc=t a k(.< S • L.oH'fJ . . . __ 

I hereby certify that the foregoing information and statements herein are true. I am aware that if any of 
the foregoing statements made by me are wilfully false, I am subject to punishment. 

Signed by me in open court in the presence of my lawyer this 1"' . J,,,{, '201.f... 
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CERTIFICATION OF COUNSEL 

_· _L_c,, ___ w_<.._tf\ ..... -~ .... "' .... -......_S_. _L ____ v_1 ~...........,~----- hereby certifies that: 

1. I am an attorney at law of the State of t\(;f and have been [RETAINED BY] [ASSION~D 
TO REPIU!SENT] the defendant Bohvt ~19"11, 01 , in EMACISTRAT~ 
[CRIMINAL] No. . 

2. I have read and fully e;,cplained to the defendant the allegations contained in the fCOMPLAtN'fi 
f-}NBICTMl!l~Tj [INFORMA ~ION]. 

3. To the best of my knowledge and beHef the statements, representations, and declarations made by 
the defendant in the foregoing Application are in all respects accurate and true. 

4. (IF APPLICABLE-) In my opinion the defendant's waiver of indictment by grand jury is 
voluntarily and knowingly made, and I recommend to the Court that the waiver be accepted by the 
Court. 

5. In my opm1on the defendant's waiver of reading the [COMPLA:~JT] [INDICTMENT} 
[INFORMATION] in open Court as provided in Rule 10 is voluntarily and knowingly made, and 
I recommend to the Court that the waiver be accepted by the Court. 

6. I have explained the maximum and any mandatory minimum penalty for each count to the 
defendant. I have explained to him that he may be ordered to make restitution tinder the Victim 
and Witness Protection Act. 

7. I have explained to the defendant that in imposing sentence, the sentencing judge is required to 
consider the Sentencing Guidelines, and I have further explained how the Guidelines might apply, 
to this offense and to the defendant. I have further explained to the defendant that the Guidelines 
are advisory, not mandatory, and that the sentencing judge may impose a sentence higher or lower 
than that recommended by the Guidelines. 

8. The plea of GUILTY offered by the defendant in Paragraph 43 accords with my understanding of 
the facts related to me and is consistent with my advice to the defendant. 

9. In my opinion the plea ofGUIL TY as offered by the defendant in Paragraph 43 of this Application 
is voluntarily made with understanding of the consequences of the plea. I recommend that the 
Court accept the plea of GUILTY. 

Signed by me in open Court in the presence of the defendant above named, and after full disclosure of the 
contents of this Certification to the defendant, this 'f "4 da o 201 L. 

8 DNJ.CR·12 (Rev .. 08/2010) 

Case 3:16-cr-00269-AET   Document 3   Filed 06/09/16   Page 8 of 8 PageID: 17



PlainSite

Legal Document

®

A joint project of Think Computer Corporation and Think Computer Foundation.
Cover art © 2015 Think Computer Corporation. All rights reserved.
Learn more at http://www.plainsite.org.

New Jersey District Court
Case No. 3:16-cr-00269
USA v. SPALLINA

Document 4

View Document

View Docket



.. 

~ \) 
·~ \"' 

---- -Es. G _ . ..- / ~~ 

Lawrence S. Lustberg, Esq. 
Gibbons P.C. 
One Gateway Center 
Newark, New Jersey 07102-5310 

U.S. Department of Justice 
· United States Attorney 
District of New Jersey 

970 Broad Street, Suite 700 
Newark, New Jersey 07102 

July 27, 2015 

Re: Plea Agreement with Robert Spallina 

'Dear Mr. Lustberg: 

This letter sets forth the plea agreement between your client, Robert 
Spallina, and the United States Attorney for the District of New Jersey ("this 
Office"). 

Charge 

Conditioned on the understandings specified below, this Office will 
accept a guilty plea from Robert Spallina to a one-count information which 
charges him with committing securities fraud between on or about November 8 
2011, and November 21, 2011, in violation of Title 15, United States Gode, 
Section 78j(b) and 78ff. If Robert Spallina enters a guilty plea and is sentenced 
on this charge, and otherwise fully complies with all of the terms of this 
agreement, this Office will not initiate any further criminal charges against 
Robert Spallina for engaging in securities fraud by: (1) trading in Pharmasset, 
Inc. (VRUS) stock in or about November 2011 based on material nonpublic 
information, and (2) passing material nonpublic information concerning VRUS 
to others who traded on it. However, in the event that a guilty plea in this 
matter is not entered for any reason or the judgment of conviction entered as a 
result of this guilty plea does not remain in full force and effect, Robert Spallina 
agrees that any dismissed charges and any other charges that are not time­
barred by the applicable statute of limitations on the date this agreement is 
signed by Robert Spallina may be commenced against him, notwithstanding 
the expiration of the limitations period after Robert Spallina signs the 
agreement. 
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Sentencing 

The violation of Title 15, United States Code, Sections 78j(b) and 78ff to 
which Robert Spallina agrees to plead guilty carries a statutory maximum 
prison sentence of 20 years and a statutory maximum fine equal to the greatest 
of: (1) $5,000,000; (2) twice the gross amount of any pecuniary gain that any 
persons derived from the offense; or (3) twice the gross amount of any 
pecuniary loss sustained by any victims of the offense. Fines imposed by the 
sentencing judge may be subject to the payment of interest. 

The sentence to be imposed upon Robert Spallina is within the sole 
discretion of the sentencing judge, subject to the provisions of the Sentencing 
R~form Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 3551-3742, and the sentencing judge's consideration 
of the United States Sentencing Guidelines. The United States Sentencing 
Guidelines are advisory, not mandatory. The sentencingjudge may impose any 
reasonable sentence up to and including the statutory :maximum term of 
imprisonment and the maximum statutory fine. This Office cannot and does 
not make any representation or promise as to what guideline range may be 
found by the sentencing judge, or as to what sentence Robert Spallina 
ultimately will receive. 

Further, in addition to imposing any other penalty on Robert Spallina, 
the sentencing judge: (1) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3013, will· order Robert 
Spallina to pay an assessment of $100, which assessment must be paid by the 
date of sentencing; (2) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3663 et seq., may order Robert 
Spallina to pay restitution; (3) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(l)(C) and 28 
U.S.C. § 2461, may order forfeiture; and (4) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3583, may 
require Robert Spallina to serve a term of supervised release of not more than 
three years, which term of supervised release will begin at the expiration of any 
term of imprisonment imposed. Should Robert ,Spallina be placed on a term of 
supervised release and subsequently violate any of the conditions of supervised 
release before the expiration of its term, Robert Spallina may be sentenced to 
not more than two years' imprisonment in addition to any prison term 
previously imposed, regardless of the statutory maximum term of 
imprisonment set forth above and without credit for time previously served on 
post-release supervision, and may be sentenced to an additional term of 
supervised release. 

Rights of This Office Regarding Sentencing 

Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, this Office reserves its 
right to take any position with respect to the appropriate sentence to be 
imposed on Robert Spallina by the sentencing judge, to correct any 
misstatements relating to the sentencing proceedings, and to provide the 
sentencing judge and the United States Probation Office all law and 
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information relevant to sentencing, favorable or otherwise. In addition, this 
Office may inform the sentencing judge and the United States Probation Office 
of: (l) this agreement; and (2) the full nature and extent of Robert Spallina's 
activities and relevant conduct with respect to this case. 

Stipulations 

This Office and Robert Spallina agree to stipulate at sentencing to the 
statements set forth in the attached Schedule A, which hereby is made a part 
of this plea agreement. This agreement to stipulate, however, cannot and does 
not bind the sentencing judge, who may make independent factual findings 
and may reject any or all of the stipulations entered into by the parties. To the 
extent that the parties do not stipulate to a particular fact ot legal conclusion, 
each reserves the right to argue the existence of and the effect of any such fact 
or conclusion upon the sentence. Moreover, this agreement to stipulate on the 
part of this Office is based on the information and evidence that this Office 
possesses as of the date of this agreement. Thus, if this Office obtains or 
receives additional evidence or information prior to sentencing that it 
determines to be credible and to be materially in conflict with any stipulation in 
the attached Schedule A, this Office shall not be bound by any such 
stipulation. A determination that any stipulation is not binding shall not 
release either this Office or Robert Spallina from any other portion of this 
agreement, including any other stipulation. If the sentencing court rejects a 
stipulation, both parties reserve the right to argue on appeal or at post­
sentencing proceedings that the sentencing court was within its discretion and 
authority to do so. These stipulations do not restrict the Government's right to 
respond to questions from the Court and to correct misinformation that has 
been provided to the Court. 

Waiver of Appeal and Post-Sentencing Rights 

As set forth in Schedule A, this Office and Robert Spallina waive certain 
rights to file an appeal, collateral attack, writ, or motion after resentencing, 
including but not limited to art appeal under 18 U.S.C. § 3742 or a motion 
under 28 U.S.C. § 2255. 

Rights of This Office Reg~ding Post-Sentencing Proceedings 

This Office specifically reserves the right to file, oppose, or take any 
position in any appeal, collateral attack, or proceeding involving post­
sentencing motions or writs. 
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Forfeiture 

Robert Spallina agrees that as part of his acceptance of responsibility 
and pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(l)(c) and 28 U.S.C. § 24°61, he will consent 
to the entry of a forfeiture money judgment in the amount of $39, 156 (the "For­
feiture Money Judgment"). Robert Spallina acknowledges that the Forfeiture 
Money Judgment is subject to forfeiture as property, real or personal, which 
constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to the conspiracy to commit 
securities fraud and/ or represents substitute assets as described in 21 U .S.C. 
§ 853(p). 

Payment of the Forfeiture Money Judgment shall be made by- certified or 
bank check, with the criminal docket number noted on the face of the check, 
payable to the United States Marshals Service. On or before the date he enters 
his plea of guilty pursuant to this agreement, the defendant shall cause said 
check to be hand delivered to the Asset Forfeiture and Money Laundering Unit, 
United States Attorney's Office, District of New Jersey, 970 Broad Street, New""' 

L ark, New Jersey 07102. 

Pursuant to Rule 32.2 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure Robert 
Spallina agrees and consents to the entry of an Order of Forfeiture imposing 
the Forfeiture Money Judgment 60 days prior to his date of sentencing. 

Robert Spallina represents that by the time this plea agreement is pro­
vided to the United States that he has either: (a) provided payment of the 
Forfeiture Money Judgment; or (b) disclosed all of his assets to the United 
States on the attached Financial Disclosure Statement. Robert Spallina under­
stands that his obligation to disclose all of his assets on the attached Financial 
Disclosure Statement is a continuing obligations and that Robert Spallina will 
update the attached Financial Disclosure Statement when necessary. 

Robert Spallina agrees that if the government determines that he has in­
tentionally failed to disclose assets on the Financial Disclosure Statement, 
dissipates assets without the consent of the United States, or otherwise does 
not cooperate in the seizure and forfeiture of ass.ets, that failure constitutes a 
material breach of this agreement. In addition, Robert Spallina consents to the 
administrative, civil, and/ or criminal forfeiture of his interests in any assets 
that he failed to disclose on the Financial Disclosure Statement or otherwise 
failed to disclose to the United States. Should undisclosed assets that the de­
fendant owns or in which the defendant has an interest be discovered, Robert 
Spallina knowingly and voluntarily waives his right to any required notice con­
cerning the forfeiture of said assets. Robert Spallina further agrees to execute 
any documents necessary to effectuate the forfeiture ofsaid assets. 

Robert Spallina further agrees to waive all interest in the Forfeiture Mon­
ey Judgment or any other assets forfeited in partial satisfaction of the 
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Forfeiture Money Judgment, in any administrative or judicial forfeiture pro­
ceeding, whether criminal or civil, state or federal. Defendant understands 
that the forfeiture of assets is part of the sentence that may be imposed in this 
case and waives any failure by the court to advise him of this pursuant to Rule 
1 l(b)(l)(J) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure at the guilty plea pro­
ceeding. 

Robert Spallina hereby waives any and all claims that this forfeiture con­
stitutes an excessive fine and agrees that this forfeiture does not violate the 
Eighth Amendment. 

Immigration Consequences 

Defendant understands and agrees that if he is not a citizen of the 
United States, his guilty plea to the charged offense will likely result in his 
being subject to immigration proceedings and removed from the United States 
by making him deportable, excludable, or inadmissible, or ending his 
naturalization, if he is not already in that status. The defendant understands 
that the immigration consequences of this plea will be imposed in a separate 
proceeding before the immigration authorities. The defendant wants and agrees 
to plead guilty to the charged offense, knowing that this plea will likely result in 
his removal from the United States. The defendant understands that he is 
bound by his guilty plea regardless of any immigration consequences of the 
plea. Accordingly, the defendant waives any and all challenges to his guilty plea 
and to his sentence based on any immigration consequences, and agrees not to 
seek to withdraw his guilty plea, or to file a direct appeal or any kind of 
collateral attack challenging his guilty plea, conviction, or sentence, based on 
any immigration consequences of his guilty plea. 

Other Provisions 

This agreement is limited to the United States Attorney's Office for the 
District of New Jersey and cannot bind other federal, state, or local authorities. 
However, this ,Office will bring this agreement to the attention of other 
prosecuting offices if requested to do so. 

This agreement was reached without regard to any civil or administrative 
matters that may be pending or commenced in the future against Robert 
Spallina. This agreement does not. prohibit the United States, any agency 
thereof (including the Internal Revenue Service and Immigration and Customs 
Enforcement), or any third party from initiating or prosecuting any civil or 
administrative proceeding against Robert Spallina. 

No provision of this agreement shall preclude Robert Spallina from pur­
suing in an appropriate. forum, when permitted by law; an appeal, collateral 
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attack, writ, or motion claiming that his guilty plea or sentence resulted from 
constitutionally ineffective assistance of counsel. 

No Other Promises 

This agreement constitutes the plea agreement between Robert Spallina 
and this Office and supersedes any previous agreements between them. No 
additional promises, agreements, or conditions have been made or will be made 
unless set forth in writing and signed by the parties. · 

Approved: 

Gurbir Grewal 
Chief, c 
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Very truly yours, 

PAUL J. FISHMAN 

~u~ By:ANDRE~N 
Assistant U.S. Attorneys 
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I have received this letter from my attorney, Lawrence S. Lustberg, Esq. 
My attorney and I have discussed it and all of its provisions, including those 
addressing the charge, sentencing, stipulati011s, waiver, and immigration · 
consequences. I understand this letter fully. I hereby accept its tenns and 
conditions and acknowledge that it constitutes the plea agreement between the 
parties.. I understand that no additional promises, agreements, or conditions 
have been made or will be made unless set forth in writing and signed by the 
parties. I want to plead guilty pursuant to this plea agreement. . 

"-.... 

I have discussed.with my client this plea agreement and all of its 
provisions, including those addressing the charge, sentencing, forfeiture, 

·stipulations, waiver, and immigration consequences. My client understands 
this plea agreement fully a.nd wants to plead guilty pursuant to it. 

LA~ERG, ESQ. Date: l/VtS' 
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I have received this letter from my attorney, Lawrence S. Lustberg, Esq. 
My attorney and I have discussed it and all of its provisions, including those 
addressing the charge, sentencing, stipulations, waiver, and immigration 
consequences. I understand this letter fully. I hereby accept its terms and 
conditions and acknowledge that it constitutes the plea agreement between the 
parties. I understand that no additional promises, agreements, or conditions 
have been made or will be made unless set forth in writing and signed by the 
parties. I want to plead guilty pursuant to this plea agreement. 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 

Date: _____ .............._ ____ ........, 
ROBERT SPALLINA 

I have discussed with my client this plea agreement and all of its 
provisions, including those addressing the charge, sentencing, forfeiture, 
stipulations, waiver, and immigration consequences. My client understands 
this plea agreement fully and wants to plead guilty pursuant to it. 

Date: 
~--------------------------

LAWRENCE S. LUSTBERG, ESQ. 
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Plea Agreement with Robert Spallina. 

SCHEDULE A 

This Office and Robert Spallina recognize that the United States 
SenteD:cing Guidelines are not binding upon the Court. This Office and Robert 
Spallina nevertheless agree to the stipulations Se~ forth herein and agree that 
the Court should sentence Robert Spallina within the Guidelines range that 
results from the total Guidelines offense level set forth below. This Office and 
Robert Spallina further agree that neither party will argue for the imposition of 
a sentence outside the Guidelines range that results from the agreed total 
Guidelines offense level. 

1. The version of the United States Sentencing Guidelines effective 
November 1, 2014 applies in this case. The applicable guideline is U.s.s:G. § 
2Bl.1. Pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 2Bl.l(a)(l), because this agreement relates to 
an offense referenced to U .S.S.G. § 2BL 1 and the offense carries a statutory 
maximum sentence of 20 years of more, the Base Offense Level is 7. 

2. Specific Offense Characteristic U.S.S.G. § 2Bl. l(b)(l)(F) applies in 
that the offense involved a loss amount of more than $120,o"OO but not more 
than $200,000, specifically $196,615. This Specific Offense Characteristic 
results in an increase of 10 levels. 

3. Specific Offense Characteristic U.S.S.G. § 3Bl.3 applies because 
Robert Spallina abused a position of public and private trust. This Specific 
Offense Characteristic results in an increase of 2 levels. 

4. As of the date of this letter, Robert Spallina has clearly 
demonstrated a recognition and affirmative acceptance of personal 
responsibility for the offense charged. Therefore, a downward adjustment of 2 
levels for acceptance of responsibility is appropriate if Robert Spallina's 
acceptance of responsibility continues through the date of sentencing. See 
U.S.S.G. § 3El. l(a). 

5. As of the date of this letter, Robert Spallina has assisted 
authorities in the investigation or prosecution of his own misconduct by timely 
notifying authorities of his intention to enter a plea of guilty, thereby permitting 
this Office to avoid preparing for trial and permitting this Office and the court 
to allocate their resources efficiently. At sentencing, this Office will move for a 
further 1-point reduction in Robert Spallina offense level pursuant to U.S.S.G. 
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§ 3El. l(b) if the following conditions are met: (a) Robert Spallina enters a plea 
pursuant to this agreement, (b) this Office in its discretion determines that 
Robert Spallina acceptance of responsibility has continued through the date of 
sentencing and Robert Spallina therefore qualifies for a 2-point reduction for 
acceptance of responsibility pursuant to U~S.S.G. § 3El. l(a), and (c) Robert 
Spallina offense level under the Guidelines prior to the operation of§ 3El. l(a) 
is 16 or greater. 

6. In accordance with the above, the parti'es agree that the total 
Guidelines offense level applicable to Robert Spallina will be 16 (the "agreed 
total Guidelines offense level"). 

7. The parties agree not to seek or argue for any upward or downward 
departure, adjustment, or variance not set forth herein. The parties further 

·agree that a sentence within the Guidelines range that results from the agreed 
total Guidelines offense level of 16 is reasonable. 

8. Robert Spallina knows that he has· and, except as noted below in 
this paragraph, voluntarily waives, the right to file any appeal, any collateral 
attack, or any other writ or motion, including but not limited to an appeal 
under 18 U.S.C. § 3742 or a motion under 28 U.S.C. § 2255, which challenges 
the sentence imposed by the sentencing court if that sentence falls within or 
below the Guidelines range that results from the agreed total Guidelines 
offense level of 16. This Office will not file any appeal, motion, or writ which 
challenges the sentence imposed by the sentencing court if that sentence falls 
within or above the Guidelines range that results from the agreed .total 
Guidelines offense level of 16. The parties reserve any right they may have 
under 18 U.S.C. § 3742 to appeal the sentencing court's determination of the 
criminal history category. The provisions of this paragraph are binding on the 
parties even if the Court employs a Guidelines analysis different from that 
stipulated to herein. Furthermore, if the sentencing court accepts a 

' ---- .. 

stipulation, both parties waive the right to file an appeal, collateral attack, writ, 
or motion claiming that the sentencing court erred in doing so. 

9. Both parties reserve the right to oppose or move to dismiss any 
appeal, collateral attack, writ, or motion barred by the preceding paragraph 
and to file or to oppose any appeal, collateral attack, writ or motion not barred 
by the preceding paragraph. 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

RECEIVED 

JUN 09 2016 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. 

To the Clerk of this Court and all parties of record: 

AT 8:30 _M 
WILLIAM T. WALSH 

CLERK 

CRIMINAL NO. l ~ - ~ ~ ~ 
APPEARANCE 

Enter my appearance as counsel in this case for _ ........ \\_o_b.....,,.. --~ __ 5p...,_._li-+\..,.....,h,....-n_f-4 ____,.,,...--­

Name ofDefehdant 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that I am a member in good standing of the bar of 
the following Court(s) since the indicated year of admission and that I am not the subject of 
suspension or disbarment from any Court: 

Year( s) of A:dmission 

Date: !.f '\/ llP 
I 

City State Zip Code 

1 r~ -- S1'1-i1'3 t 17J-{,J ,, ~~( 
Phone Number Fax Number 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
     DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

     MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

DATE OF PROCEEDINGS: 6/9/2016
CRIMINAL DOCKET #: 16-269(AET)-01

OFFICE: TRENTON
JUDGE ANNE E. THOMPSON
COURT RECORDER: K. STILLMAN

TITLE OF CASE:
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

vs.
ROBERT SPALLINA, DEFENDANT PRESENT.

APPEARANCES:
Andrew Kogan,  Assistant United States Attorney
Lawrence Lustberg, Esquire for Defendant.
Maryellyn Muller, Supervising, U.S. Probation Officer

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS: 
WAIVER OF INDICTMENT/PLEA & SENTENCE HEARING HELD.
Lawrence Lustberg, Esquire has been retained as counsel of record.
Initial appearance held.
Defendant advised of rights, charges, and penalties.
Ordered defendant sworn; defendant sworn.
Waiver of Indictment executed and filed.
INFORMATION filed.
Defendant entered Plea of Guilty to a One-Count Information.
Ordered terms of the plea agreement read into the record.
Ordered plea agreement approved and accepted.
Plea agreement and Rule 11 Form to be filed.
Parties stipulated to have defendant sentenced.
Ordered defendant sentenced:
Probation: 2 years imposed with special conditions.
Fine: $5,000.00 
Restitution: N/A
Special assessment: $100 (due immediately)
Defendant advised of right to appeal.
Ordered consent of forfeiture judgment filed. 
Time commenced: 2:30 p.m.     
Time Adjourned: 3:15 p.m.      
Total Time: 45 minutes

s/Dana Sledge-Courtney
 Courtroom Deputy
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY · 

. <(, Q . 

UNITED STATES OF AMERIC~ ~ : Hon. Anne E. Thompson 
·~ -~ 

v. G \~ '\)> : ~ Crim. No. 16-Zhq (AET)-<J I 
. <(/ ~ Jll1lf 'b~ 

ROBERT SPALLINA~ ~~ ~t:" CONSENT JUDGMENT AND 
~"i\:~f- ORDER OF FORFEITURE ;~(;; ~~r~«; 

Defendant. .;:. '6~~ v : (MONEY JUDGMENT) 

WHEREAS, on or about June 9, 2016, defendant Robert Spallina pleaded 

· guilty pursuant to a plea agreement with the United States to a one-count 

Information (the "Information"), which charged him with securities fraud, in 

violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78ff; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(l)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461, a 

person convicted of a securities fraud offense in violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) 

and 78ff, as alleged in the Information, shall forfeit to the United States all 

property; real and persona.I, that constitutes or is derived from proceeds 

traceable to the commission of such offense; 

WHEREAS, the property subject to forfeiture by defendant Robert Spallina 

includes a sum of money equal to $39,156, representing the proceeds of the 

securities fraud offense charged in the Information; 

WHEREAS, in the plea agreement, the defendant consented to the 

imposition of a criminal forfeiture money judgment in the amount of $39, 156; 

WHEREAS, Rule 32.2(c)(l) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 

provides that rto ancillary proceeding is required to the extent that the forfeiture 

consists of a money judgment; 
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WHEREAS, Rule 32.2(b)(4){A) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 

provides that a preliminary order of forfeiture, including a preliminary order of 

forfeiture consisting of a money judgment, may become final at any time before 

sentencing if the defendant consents; 

WHEREAS, defendant Robert Spallina: 

(1) Consents to the forfeiture to the United States of $39,156 as a 

sum of money representing the. proceeds of the offense charged in the 

Information, to which the defendant has pleaded guilty (the "Money Judgment"); 

(2) Consents to the imposition of a money judgment in the 

amount of $39,156 pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(l)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461, 

and agrees that this Order is final at the time of its entry by the Court, pursuant 

to Rule 32.2(b)(4)(A) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure; 

(3) . Agrees to consent promptly upon request to the entry of any 

orders deemed necessary by the government or the Court to complete the 

forfeiture and disposition of property forfeited to satisfy the Money Judgment; 

(4) Agrees promptly to pay the Money Judgment in full; 

(5) Waives the requirements of Federal Rules of Criminal 

Procedure 32.2 and 43(a) regarding notice of forfeiture in the charging 

instrument, announcement of the forfeiture in the defendant's presence at 

sentencing, and incorporation of the forfeiture in the Judgment of Conviction; 

(6) Acknowledges that he understands that forfeiture of property 

will be part of the sentence imposed upon him in this case and waives any failure 

by the Court to advise him of this, pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal 

Procedure 11(b)(1 )(J), during the plea hearing; 
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(7) Waives, and agrees to hold the United States and its agents 

and employees harmless from, any and all claims whatsoever in connection with 

the seizure, forfeiture, and disposal of the property described above; and 

(8) Agrees that the forfeiture does not constitute an excessive fine 

or violate the Eighth Amendment. 

WHEREAS, good and sufficient cause has been shown, 

It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED: 

THAT, as a result of the offense charged in the Information, to which the 

defendant Robert Spallina has pleaded guilty, the defendant shall forfeit to the 

United States the sum of$39,156. A money judgment in the amount of$39,156 

(the "Money Judgment") is hereby entered against the defendant pursuant to 18 

U.S.C. § 98l(a)(l)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461 and Federal Rule of Criminal 

Procedure 32.2(b). 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, the defendant having given his consent 

pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure Rule 32.2(b)(4l(A), upon entry of 

this Consent Judgment and Order of Forfeiture, this Order is final as to the 

defendant Robert Spallina, shall be deemed part of the sentence of the 

defendant, and shall be included in the judgment of conviction therewith. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all payments on the Money Judgment 

shall be made by postal money order, bank or certified check, made payable, in 

this instance to the United States Marshals Service, and delivered by mail to the 

United ·states Attorney's Office, District of New Jersey, Attn: Asset Forfeiture and 

Money Laundering Unit, 970 Broad Street, 7th Floor, Newark, New Jersey 

07102, and shall indicate the defendant's name and case number on the face of 

the check. 
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IT lS FURTHER ORDERED that, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853, as 

incorporated by 18 U.S.C. § 98l(a)(l)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461, the United States 

Marshals Service is authorized to deposit all payments on the Money Judgment 

in the Assets Forfeiture Fund, and the United States shall have clear title to such 

forfeited property. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pursuant to Rule 32.2(b)(3) of the Federal 

Rules of Criminal Procedure, upon entry of this Order, the United States 

Attorney's Office is authorized to conduct any discovery needed to identify, 

locate, or dispose of property to satisfy the Money Judgment, including 

depositions, interrogatories, requests for production of documents and the 

issuance of subpoenas. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Clerk of the Court is directed t.o enter 

a money judgment against the defendant in favor of the United States in the 

amount of $39,156. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction to 

enforce this Order, and to amend it as necessary, pursuant to Rule 32.2(e) of the 

Federal Rules of Crimi~dure. · 

ORDERED this Ji7day o~ , 2016. 

HONORABLE ANNE E. THOMP 
United States District Judge 

-4-
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The undersigned hereby consent to 
the entiy and form of this order: 

PAUL J. FISHMAN 
United States Atto 

AN REW D. KO 
BARBARA A. WARD 

Assistant United States Attorneys 

LA~BERG, ESQ. 
Attorney for Defendant Robert Spallina 

-5-

Dated: c.(r/I, 

Dated: 

Deputy Clerk 
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AO 2458 (Mod. O/NJ 12/06) Sheet 1 - Judgment in a Criminal Case 

RECEIVED 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

District of New Jersey 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

JUN 1 ~ 2016 
AT 8:30 M 

WILLIAM T. WALSH 
CLERK 

v. CASE NUMBER 3:16-CR-00269-AET•1 

ROBERT SPALLINA 

Defendant. 

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE 
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) 

The defendant, ROBERT SPALLINA, was represented by LAWRENCE S. LUSTBERG. 

The defendant pleaded guilty to count(s) one of the INFORMATION on 6/9/2016. Accordingly, the court has adjudicated 
that the defendant is guilty of the following offense(s): 

Title & Section Nature of Offense 

15:78j(b) & 78ff; SECURITIES FRAUD 
17:240.1 Ob-5; 
18:2 

Date of Offense 

11/8/2011 
THROUGH 
11/21/2011 

Count 
Number(s) 

1 

As pronounced on June 09, 2016, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 6 of this judgment. 
The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984. 

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $100.00 for count(s) 1, which 
shall be .due immediately. Said special assessment shall be made payable to the Clerk, U.S. District Court. 

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within 30 days of any 
change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs and special assessments imposed by this 
judgment are fully paid. If ordered to pay restitution, the defendant shall notify the court and United States attorney of any 
material change in the defendant's economic circumstances. 

Signed on this 14th day of June, 2016. 

33076 
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Defendant: ROBERT SPALLINA 
Case Number: 3:16-CR-00269-AET-1 

PROBATION 

The defendant is hereby sentenced to probation for a term of 2 years. 

Judgment- Page 2 of 6 

While on probation, the defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court 
(set forth below): 

Based on information presented, the defendant is excused from the mandatory drug testing provision, however, 
may be requested to submit to drug testing during the period of supervision if the probation officer determines a risk of 
substance abuse. 

If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs or restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of probation 
that the defendant pay any such fine, assessment, costs and restitution and shall comply with the following special 
conditions: 

MENTAL HEALTH TREATMENT 

You shall undergo treatment in a mental health program approved by the United States Probation Office until 
discharged by the Court. As ·necessary, said treatment may also encompass treatment for gambling, domestic 
violence and/or anger management, as approved by the United States Probation Office, until discharged by the 
Court. The Probation Officer shall supervise your compliance with this condition. 
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Defendant: ROBERT SPALLINA 
Case Number: 3:16-CR-00269-AET-1 

Judgment - Page 3 of 6 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION 

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this Judgment: 

1) The defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime during the term of supervision. 

2) The defendant shall not illegally possess a controlled substance. 

3) If convicted of a felony offense, the defendant shall not possess a firearm or destructive device. 

4) The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer. 

5) The defendant shall report to the probation officer in a manner and frequency directed by the Court or probation officer. 

6) The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation 
officer. 

7) The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities. 

8) The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, 
training, or other acceptable reasons. 

9) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment. 

10) The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or 
administer any narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances. 

11) The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or 
administered. 

12) The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any 
person convicted of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer. 

13) The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit 
confiscation of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer. 

14) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law 
enforcement officer. 

15) The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency 
without the permission of the court. 

16) As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the 
defendant's criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such 
notifications and to confirm the defendant's compliance with such notification requirement. 

17) You shall cooperate in the collection of DNA as directed by the Probation Officer. 

(This standard condition would apply when the current offense or a prior federal offense is either a felony, any offense 
under Chapter 109A of title 18 (i.e.,§§ 2241-2248, any crime of violence [as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 16], any attempt or 
conspiracy to commit the above, an offense under the Uniform Code of Military Justice for which a sentence of 
confinement of more than one year may be imposed, or any other offense under the Uniform Code that is comparable 
to a qualifying federal offense); 

18) Upon request, you shall provide the U.S. Probation Office with full disclosure of your financial records, including co­
mingled income, expenses, assets and liabilities, to include yearly income tax returns. With the exception of the 
financial accounts reported and noted within the presentence report, you are prohibited from maintaining and/or 
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Defendant: ROBERT SPALLINA 
Case Number: 3:16-CR-00269-AET-1 

Judgment- Page 4 of 6 

opening any additional individual and/or joint checking, savings, or other financial accounts, for either personal or 
business purposes, without the knowledge and approval of the U.S. Probation Office. You shall cooperate with the 
Probation Officer in the investigation of your financial dealings and shall provide truthful monthly statements of your 
income. You shall cooperate in the signing of any necessary authorization to release information forms permitting the 

, U.S. Probation Office access to your financial information and records; 

19) As directed by the U.S. Probation Office, you shall participate in and complete any educational, vocational, cognitive or 
any other enrichment program offered by the U.S. Probation Office or any outside agency or establishment while under 
supervision; 

20) You shall not operate any motor vehicle without a valid driver's license issued by the State of New Jersey, or in the 
state in which you are supervised. You shall comply with all motor vehicle laws and ordinances and must report all 
motor vehicle infractions (including any court appearances) within 72 hours to the U.S. Probation Office; 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------, 
For Official Use Only - - - U.S. Probation Office _ 1 

·---------------------------------------------------------------------~---------~---~ 

Upon a finding of a violation of probation or supervised release, I understand that the Court may (1) revoke supervision 
or (2) extend the term of supervision and/or modify the conditions of supervision. 

These conditions have been read to me. I fully understand the conditions, and have been provided a copy of them. 

You shall carry out all r·ules, in addition to the above, as prescribed by the Chief U.S. Probation Officer, or any of his 
associate Probation Officers. 

(Signed) _________________________ _ 
Defendant Date 

U.S. Probation Officer/Designated Witness Date 

1-
1 
I 
I 
I 

--------------~~----------------------------------------------------------~---------· 
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Defendant: ROBERT SPALLINA 
Case Number: 3:16-CR-00269-AET-1 

The defendant shall pay a fine of $5,000.00. 

Judgment - Page 5 of 6 

FINE 

This fine, plus any interest pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f)(1 ), is due immediately and shall be paid in monthly 
installments of no less than $50.00, to commence 30 days after the date of this judgment. 

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have been originally 
imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614. 

Unless the court has expressly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal 
monetary penalties is due during imprisonment. All criminal monetary penalties, except those payments made through the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, are made to the clerk of the court. 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: (1) assessment, (2) restitution principal, (3) restitution interest, (4) 
fine principal, (5) community restitution, (6) fine interest, (7) penalties, and (8) costs, including cost of prosecution and court 
costs. 
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Defendant: ROBERT SPALLINA 
Case Number: 3:16-CR-00269-AET-1 

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE 

FORFEITURE 

The defendant is ordered to forfeit the following property to the United States: 

Consent Judgment and Order of Forfeiture to be filed separately. 

Judgment- Page 6 of 6 

Unless the court has expressly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal 
monetary penalties is due during imprisonment. All criminal monetary penalties, except those payments made through the 
Federal Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, are made to the clerk of the court. 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: (1) assessment, (2) restitution principal, (3) restitution interest, (4) 
fine principal, (5) community restitution, (6) fine interest, (7) penalties, and (8) costs, including cost of prosecution and court 
costs. 
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IN nm UNITBD STATBS DISTB.ICI' COURT 
POll THB DJSTRICT OP NBW J.BRSBY 

SECUJUTIBS AND BXCHANGB COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff; 

v. 

~BER.TL. SPALLINA. et al, 

CONSENT OF DBRNDANT ROBERT L SPALLINA 

J. Dofmdant lt.obort L Spallina ("Dofondant') waivea service of a summona aJid tho 

complah.lt in this action, onten a pneral appearanco, and admits tho Comt•a jmiacliction over 

l>Ofondant and over the subject matter of this action. 

2.. Dofcndant 1lal &peed to plead guilty to crimmal conduct re1adJ2g to certain 

} matters alleged In the eomplaint it> this action and acbowledgea that his conduct violated the 

federal securities law& Speciti~y, Defendant has aarecd to plead guilty to a one count 

informatiOD which charges him with committiq securitios fraud involvina insider trading in tho 

aooaritioa of Pharmasset. lno. in a matter to be filed in tho United States District Court to1 tho 

District of New Jeney.(tbe ''CrimJnal Action"). 

3. Defendant .horoby co~ts to tbe entry of tho Pinal Judgment in the form attached 

hereto (the "Pinal Judgment') and incolpOtlted by refenmco herein, which, among other things: 

(a) J>ermanentty restrains and eqjoina Deteodant Jiom violation of Secdom 

· lO(b) mid 14(o) of the Securities Bxchinp Act.of 1934 C'Bxchango Act") 

, 

I 
. f 

! 
~ 
i 
i 
f 
j 

~ 

I 
I . 
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[15 U.S.~. §I 78j(b) and 7~n(o)] and Rules lOb-S and 14c>l thereunder 

[17 C.P.R. §§ 240.tOb-S md 240.14e-3); 

(b) orders Dofendant to pay disgorpmeat in the amount of$39,156, plus 

prejudgment interest dJoreoa in the amount of Sl,794; provided, however, 

• that $39,1545 shall be deemed sadafled in 1igbt of Defendant's conaont to 

tho entry of a bfoitare money judgment in the amount of $39,156 iD . 

cmmeodon with the Criminal Aationt and 

(c) otdors Ddmdaat to pay a ctvil penalty in tho amount of $39,156 under 

Seodon 21A of die Bxchanp Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-1]. 

4. Defondant agrees that ho ahall not seek or accept,.~ or indirecdy, 
. 

ceimbutlemeDt or indcnmitl<Jation &om any SOUl'cet includina but not limited to payment made 

pursuant to any insunmQe policy, with regard to any cM1 penalty amounts that Dofcndant pays 

pursuant to the Pinal 1uclpient, rlpdel8 of whotbar such penalty 8IJlOUDia or ay put thereof 

ans added to a diatribution but or odaonrise used for the bone& of investors. Defendant tbrther 

agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to _any 

fedenJ, state, or IOOld tax for any penalty amounts that Dcfendmt pays pursuant U> the Final 

Judgment, regardless of whedler such penalty amounts or any part thereof aro added to a 

distribution fimd or odterwise used for tbe benefit of inveaton. 

S. Dofondanl waives the entry of ftndinp of fact and conclusiona of law pursuant to 

.Rulo 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.. 

6. Dofondant waivca the right. if any, to a jury trial and to appeal ftom the entry of 

the PJnal 1udplmt. 

2 
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. . 
7. Defendant enters into this Consent vohmtarily and represents that no tbreotB, 

.• 
of:fen, promisea. or induOOJDelda of any kind have been made by the Commission or any 

mombor, offtoer, employee, •• or representative of tho Commiasion to induce Defendant to 

enter {Dto this Consent. 

8. Dofeadant agrees that this Consent shall bo incorpomt.ed into the F~ J'vdgmcmt 

with· tho aame fcm:e and ctrect aa Jf fblly set forth therein. 

9. Defandant will D0t oppo80 tho enforcement of tho Pinal Judgment OD fho p.xmd, 

·if my exists, that it tails to comply with llule 6S(d) of the Pederal ltules of Civil Proceduro, and . 

ltenby waivel any objection baaed tbm:on. 

10. Dofondant waives aervico of the Pinal Judgment and aamcs that entry of tho Pinal 

ludgment by tho Coult and~ with the aert of tho Comt will constitute notice to Defendant 

of ita teaaa and conditions. Dofendant i\uther aareea to provide counael tor the Commiuion, 

within tbirr.y da11 after the Pinal ludgmODt fa filed witll the Clerk of the Court, with an atndavit 

or declaration stating that Defendant bu recoived ~read a copy of the Pinal Judgment. 

11. Consistmt with 17 c.F.R. I 202.5(1), thfs Consent resolves only the claims 

asserted against Defendant fn this civil proceedfng. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or 

representation has been made by the Commission or any mmnber, o~cer, employee, agent, or 

representative oftbo CommissJon with mprd to any oriminal liability that may haw er.inn or 
• • t 

may arlae ftom the factl underlying tbJ.a action or immunity ftom any such criminal liability. 

Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy bued upo~ the settlement of this pmceeding, 

including tho imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Dofendant Jbrther acknowledges 

that the Court's entry of a ~ent ID;unctioa may have collateral conaequencea under federal 

or state law and ihe rules and regulations of self.regulatory organizadons, Ucensing boards, and 

I 

I 
t 
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other regulatory orpnindons. Such collateral consequences include, but aro not limited to, a 

. slatufOl'y disqualificadon with respect to membership or participation in, or aasociadon wi1h a 

member o~ a~~ Tlda statutory diaqualiftoation baa consequencea that 

are soparate from any aancdon imposed in ID~ pmceedlng. In addition, in any 

discJplfnary proceeding before the Commission baaed on tho entl)' of the injunction in this 

action, Defendant undonbm.da that ho abal1 not bo ponniued to contest the factual allejationa of 

the complaint ill tbia action. 

12. Defendant understands and apees to comply with tho tenm of 17 C.P.R. 

f 202,S(e). whlcb provides in part that it ia tho Commisaion'a poliO)' ''nc>t to permit a dofendaat 

or respolideDt to consent to a judgment or older that impose8 a sanction while denyins the . ' 

aJleptiom in the complaint or OJder for pmc:eedlnp." Aa part of Defendant's agreemant to 

comply with tho klm8 of Section 2015(0), Dofendaat acknowledges that bo has aJD*I to plead 

gufhy tor rolatec1 conduct as deacribcd in paragraph 2 above, and: (i) will not tab any action or 

make or permit to be made any pablio statement denying directly or indirectly, any allegation in 

~e complamt or creating the impieaslon that the complaint la without W basis; (If) will not 

maim or permit to be made any pubHc statement to tho effect that Defendant does not admit tho 

al1epd.ona of the complaint, or that this Conseat contains no admission of the allepticms; (iii) 

upon the filing of tbia Consent. Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in this action to tbe 

extent that they dmy ~Y aDeption in the complaint; aud (iv) sdpul,iea for putpOaOS of 

aceptiona to diacbarge sot forth in Section 523 of the Bantrvptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.. §523. that the 

allegations in the complahlt are true. and ibrtbo.r, that any dobt tor diagorgement. prejudgsnent 

intoreat, civil penalty or other amounts duo by Defendant under the Final Judgment or any other 

judgment, order, consent order, decree or aottJeaDent agreement entered in connection with this 

4 
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proceeding, ia a debt tbr the violation by Defendant of tho federal securities laws or any 

regulation or order issued under IUCb laws, aa sct forth in Section S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy 

Code, 11 u.s.c. tS23(aX19). Jf Defondant broaches 1hil asreememt, the Commisaion may 
petition the Court to vacate the Pinal Judgment and reatoro tblt action to 111 active cfoclcot. 

Nothilig in tbia paragraph affocti Dofe.adant'r. (i) testimonial obliptlona; or (H) tight to take 

lept or factual positions in litiption or other lesal proceedings in which the Commission ia not 

apady. 

13. . Dofendant hereby wafvea any righta under tho Bqua1 Accoaa to Justice Act, 1ho 

SmaD BUlhtesa Regulatory Bnfomement Faimeaa Act of 1996, or any other provision Of Jaw to 

uek tiom the United Statea, or·any agency, or any oftloial of tho United States acdng Jn his or 

· her oftlcial capacity, dlrecdy or indirectly, reimbursement of attomof s fees or other fees, 

oxpenses, or coats expanded by Dofondant to defend allafnst tlda acdon. Por tbcmo pUq>oaes, . 

Ddmdant agnea that Ddmdant ii not the prevailing party ill thl8 action sinco the parties have 

reached a good faith settlement. 

14. Jn connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative 

pmceeding ot Jnvesdpdon commonced by the Commlaafon or to which the Commission is a 

party, Defendant (i) agnea to appear and be il1teniewed by Commission staff at such dmea and 

pllcoa as tllo atatr requeata upon reasonable noticoi (ll) will accept service by mail or filcsimilo 

uanamiaaion of noticee or nbpoenu iaaued by the Commiaaion for dooumeata or toadmony at 

depoaidoDa, heulnp, or trials. or In cmmoodon with any related investigation by Coinmi.,.tcm 

~ (Jii) appoim Dofendant'a undendped attorney as. apnt to receive service of such notices 

and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such nodces and aubpoo.ou, waives the terri~ limits on 

service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Pro_ceduro and any a}iplicable tOcal 

s 
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rules, j>rovided chat the party requesdng the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodgina, and 

subsisteacO egpeasoa at the then-provailing U.S. Govemment per diem rates;·anct (v) conacmta to · 

peraonaljurisdiction over Defendant ia any United States Diatrict Couri for'pmpoaes of 

· enforolng any noh ~ 

15. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Pinal J'udgment ·to the 

Comt for aipatuN and entzy without Auther notico. 

16. Defendant agrees chat tbi8 Court ahall retain jurisdiction over this matter for tho 
I 

puq>ose of enforcing the terms of the Pinal Judgment. 

Approved II to form: 

~~ Gibbobs ... 
One Gateway Center 
Newark, NJ 07102-5310 
Counsel for Robert L Spallina 

~CQ~ 
· Commiaion expim: 

Q) Alexa Collevecldo .... ' ..... .......... 
WIWMDllOTAIY.001 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ROBERT L. SP ALLINA, et al., 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT L. SPALLINA 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Robert L. Spallina having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment; 

waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; waived any right to appeal from this Final 

Judgment; and Defendant having admitted the facts set forth in the Consent of Robert L. Spallina 

and acknowledged that his conduct violated the federal securities laws: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

lO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule 1 Ob-5 promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circUinStances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14( e) of the Exchange 

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while m possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to know has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender off er; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of$39,156, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $1, 794; provided, 

however, that $39,156 shall be deemed satisfied in light of Defendant's consent to the entry of a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of $39, 156 in connection with the resolution of a 

parallel criminal action instituted in this Court; and a civil penalty in the amount of $39,156 

pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this 

obligation by paying $40,950 to the Securities and Exchange Commission within 14 days after 

entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/F edwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

4 
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and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Robert L. Spallina as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made 

pursuant to this Final Judgment. 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

N. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

5 
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

523(a)(l9) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a){l9). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

6 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ROBERT L. SP ALLINA, et al., 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT L. SP ALLINA 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Robert L. Spallina having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment; 

waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; waived any right to appeal from this Final 

Judgment; and Defendant having admitted the facts set forth in the Consent of Robert L. Spallina 

and acknowledged that his conduct violated the federal securities laws: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are pennanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

IO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule 1 Ob-5 promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

( c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert.or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14(e) of the Exchange 

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F .. R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to kn.ow has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of$39,156, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $1, 794; provided, 

however, that $39,156 shall be deemed satisfied in light of Defendant's consent to the entry of a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of$39,156 in connection with the resolution of a 

parallel criminal action instituted in this Court; and a civil penalty in the amount of $39,156 

pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this 

obligation by paying $40,950 to the Securities a.nd Exchange Commission within 14 days after 

entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/F edwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities a.nd Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

4 
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and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Robert L. Spallina as a defendant in this action; and specifying that paymentis made 

pursuant to this Final Judgment. 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

IV. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

5 
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(19). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

6 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO~T 
·DISTRICT OF NBW JBRSBlj 

SBCURITJBS AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

· Plaintiff, 
C.A.·No. _._ 

v. 
1· • 

DONAW R. TBSCHBR. et al, 

. ..1 

·CONS~ OJ' DEFENDANT DONALD.IL TE~ 

· 1. Defendant Donald R. Tescher ("Defendant") waives service of a summons aDd . 

,: 

herein in paragraph ·12 and. except as to~ and subject matter jlJdsdiction, which 

Defendant admits), Defendant hereby eonsents to the emry of the final Judgment in the fomi 
II " . .r 
• • .. ~ • + 

attached hereto (the "Fmal J~eat") and incorporated~ refinnce henDn. which, among other 

(a) 
' . 

tO(b) and 14(e) of die Securities ~change Mt of 1934 ("Rxchange Act'? .. · 
.. 

[lS U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78n{e)] and Rules 101>-S ind 14&-3 tbereunder 

[17 C.F.R:. ·-§ 240.lOb-S and.240.14e-3); 

(b) · orders DefeDdapt to pay disgorpment in the amount of $9,937, plus · 

prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $690; and 

1. 
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. , 

(c) orders De~ to pay a civil penalty in 1he amount of $9,937 under · 
. . 

Section 21A oftbe Exchange Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-1]. 
. " 

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not~ or accept, dii'ectly or indirectly, 

reimbqrsemmt or jndemnJficatioo from any source, includhig but not limited to payment made . . 

pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defimdant pays 

pursuant to the Final Judgment. regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereo~ 

are added to a ctistributicm fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investon. · DefeDdant fbrther 

agrees that be shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax ciectit with regard to apay 

·federal, stale, or local tax for any penalty .amo~ that Defendant pays pursuant. to the Final 
, < 

·.Judplent, ~ess of wbetber·sUch penalty amOUDts ~any part thereof are added to a 

dimibUti~ fund or otherwise used for.the benefit of investors.. 

4. Defendant ~tectP that the Court is not imposing a ci~ penalty in excess 

· ofS9,937 based on DefeQdant's cooperation in a Commi•on inwsdgation and/or mated 
~. ' • •· ·. ' •· • ......... ;,,,. a ' ' •"· '- '. ·•· .. ' • • ' ... · •... • • ' ' "'-' • • • • • ' ,., • • , .. • ·• ' • • . .; ,,;, ;, ; ' -~• ' ,., "" ' •. ,.., •• ' ,., • 

~action. ~ consems that if at an)' ame followina the eJltr)' of the irma1 
~ . (• . . 

Judpient ~ Commiaion obtains intomuttion indicatiq that Defendant knowinalJ JJl1;Mded 

materially false or mislead~ infonnation or materials to the Commission or in a related 
. . . 

Pmceectina. the Commission may, at its sole ~on ana without prior notice to the Defendant;. 

petition the ~·for an order requiring Defendant·to pay an additional civil penalty.. In 

. . ·connection with the Commission's motion for civil penalties, and at any hcsarin1 held on such a 

motion: (a) Defendant Will be preCtuded from arguing that he did not viol8te the federal 

securities Jaws as alleged in the Complamt; (b) Defendant may not challenge the validity of the 

Judpient, this Consent, or any related Undertakings; (c) the~ of the cOmp• solely 

for~ purposes of'~ motion, sb8n be accepted as and deemed 1rue by the Court; and (d) the 

. 2 
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Cour_t may deterinine the issues raised in the motion on the basis of atlidavits, declarations, 

excerpts of sworn deposi~ or investigative testimony, and documentary evidence without 

regard to the standards for summary judgment contained. in Rule S6(c) of the Federil Rules of 

Civil Procedme. Under these circumstances, the parties may take discovery, including discovery . 

·-
S. Defendant waives die entry of findinp of fact and conclusiom of law pursuant to 

Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedme. 

6. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury 1l;ia1 and to appeat from the entry of. 

the Final Judgment. 

7. Defendant ente.rs into this Consent voluntarily and 1epieseats that no tbreafs, 

o1fers, promises, or inducementa of any kind haw been made by the Commission or any e _, II 

member, ofticer, employee, apnt, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to 

8. Defendant 111W 1hat this Consent shall be incorporatecl into the Final Jtufp1ent 

with the same fome and effect u if fully set forth therein. 

9. · Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground, 
, .. 

if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 6S(d) of the Federal Rules of CiW Procedure. and 

hereby waiws any objection based thereon. .. 

1 O. Defendant waives service of the F'mal Judgment and agfees that entry of the Pinal 

Judgment by the Court and fillna with the Clerk: of the Court wiD comf:itute notice to Defendant . 

of its terms and conditions. Defendant further aarees to provide counsel for the Comminion, 

within thirty days after the Final Judpent is tiled with the Clerk of the Court, with an aftidavit 

or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Fmal Judgment. 

3 
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' . 
11. Consistent with 17 C.P .R. § 202.S(f), tbis. ConsCnt resQ.lves only the claims 

asserted agiun&t Defendnt in this. civil ~Ing ~ adato~ that no promise or 
. . : . . ; ... 

•• • ,. > • .. ... 

. ·~on has been made by the Commission or any .member, ofiicer, Cmployee, agent, 0r 

~ve of tlle·CommissiO.n with regmd to any criminal lilbility that may have arisen or 
, ..... 

. . 
· may arise ftOm the facts underlyina this aCtion or immuDity from any~ criniinal liability. 

Defendant waives any.claim ofDouble·Jeopardy ~upon the ~ent.ofthis ~ng. 

including the imposition of miy xeinedy or civil penalty berehi. Defenctant ~ 8cbowf~. 

that die Court's entry of a permanent ~n may have colllteial ~~under federal 
' .. ~ . 

or state law and the rules and iegulatiOns of self-regulatory orpniDtions, licensina boards. and 

other regulatory~ Such collateral consequences ~ but are·n~ limited to, a 

statutoij-with·respect to~ or participation in, 0r _.ad.on wi1h a · 
··- . .. . ·~ . . . .. . . ·. . . . .... - . 

mem~ot; a.Self~.~ ~ sbdutm)'.~llas CODJOqUeDCeldwt 

·are se.r)arate ·&om any ~on imposed in in administDative pmcWcHna . .In addition, in any . 
. : . • ~. '"~·"' '"":'''""~"·,~ .. ;.: ·• .; . ·"·: .,·~·.·"'\"•':'':,;:,.;:..·.~,; • .,.,;, ... :·· ... : .. , ·!'·· '""·' ........... ;., .... ~ .. , .. ,<', ....... ~ ......... ., .... , .. :)'"'·: ,, . ; .. ,, ":'""''' ,: ,,·,, .. 

disciplbiary pr0crofin1beforethoCommissionbased0n the.emry of the injunction in this 
~- ' .. 

action. Defendant 1Dldentands that he shall not be permitted to comest the factual allegations of 
. . . .. . 

the cOmplaint in this actiOn. .. 
12. · Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the~ of 17 c.F.R. 

•. 

§ 202.S(e), which provides in part 1hat it is fhe· Commission's policy "not to permit a defmdmit . 

or respondent to consent to a judgment 0r order that imPoses a sanction wbUe denying the 
f ~ • • • 

·alleged~ in the complaint or Older for proceedinp." and "a retbsal to admit the allegations is 

equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or mpondent stama that he neither admits nor denies 

the allegatiom.'' ~ part of Defendant's agreeinellt to comj>ly witl;l the terms of Section 202.S(e), 

· Defendant: (i) wm ·not~'·~ ~on or make or permit to bo IP8de any public statement 

4 
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' . 
denyin& dhecdy or ~y. ~allegation in the complaint or~ the~ that the 

~is withoqt·factuat ·basis; (h)willnot mate ~pciamit _:,·be made anypublic·'statemem 
' . . .. ~ . . : . .. . . . . _.: ; 

' 
to the etfect that DefeDdaat does not admit the alleptions of the qomplaint. or.that this ·Consent. 

· ~no admission of the an9d~ without aliO stadDg that~ does not deny the. 
" ' ..... . "... .;, 

thi8 actiontO the~ that the, clCnY any allegation in the Com,tamt; am (iv)·~ solely 
• • ' -11' • 

for pmp1&ei ·of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of-the Bankruptcy Code, 11 . 

. u~s.~. §523, that the anepdom in die complaint a true, and~. that mi, debt ror . 
. disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amoums d1_le by Defimdant under~ \ : 

.{ ... · 

Fin:81 Juctlmeni or q. other judgmellt, order, consent order, decree or:~~ .. 

· ~ ia cmmedioD ~~:~is a debt ibrtl)e vio1atlOa ~~of tho iildeial 

secmitics Jawa or any regulation, or Order issUed ~ suCh laws, u set forth in Section · 

S23CaX19)oftbo Bankruptcy Code, 11 u.s.C. §523(aj(t9). IfDcfendaat breaches this 
..•.... ~ •.. ..,,:..,. ~-"?·· l' .•. ~., .... ,. ... , •. ;.,; ....... 1 .............. '·-·:· .. ,. ..... ,,........ ..• ..... ,. ~ : ' '. , . .,, .. , . . ·-~·········'·" •'' '''." ,: . ·~ ........ ··. :·~.· .. ,..,.... .. ~ " ; 

agreem«;nt, the Commission maj petition the~ to vacate 1he Final J1utgmeut and JeStore this · . 
. ,. . ' _., . 

. . 

· obligations; or (ti) right to take lel:'1 or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedinp · 

· in which. the Commission is not a party. 

13. Defendant 'hereby waives~ rights under the~ Access to Justice Act, the 

Small B•'Siness Regulatory EnforcementFairneas.Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to 
. . 

seek ftOm. the United States. 0r any agency, ~any ofli~ of the United States acting~ his or · 

her official capacity, directly or indirectly,~ of attomey•i fees or other~ 

. eXpenses. or costs eX.,ended by Defen,dant to defend apinst this action. For theaO pmposes,. 

s 
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.>"' • 

. . . 
: , " ' . ~,'. . . . 

. Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing' party in this action smce tho parties have 
{ ' ' > , ... • • • .. 

;~·aoQ4-~\ 
14. ln-~oowithtbis d~ and anyielatecl~ill or~ 

,. . . . . .. . ' ·''· . . . . . ·. . . ~ 

procee<ting or inWitigadon Coininenceci by the Commission or to which1be Comniission is a 
. . ,· . . . .. . .- . 

party, Defendant (i) ....... tolppear and· be interviewed by Cotnrft(ssi~strdf at .. times and . 

places_• the statr~ Qpo~reas0nal)le notice;.(h)will~ ~ by.~or ~ile 
' . . ,. 

tnmsmission.of D01ices or subpoenas issued by tho Commission.for~- or testimony at 

sta&;· (lh) appoints Defendant's undersip.ed attomey • agent to receive selvice of such notices 
. ,. . ' 

and subpoenas; (IV) with respect to such'. notices ~subpoenas, waives tho territorial limits OD 
. ~ , . 

seMce contafu.ed in Rule 4S.Of the Federal ~-of Civil~ and any applicable~ 
, ·>. • ,. 

. rules. pmvideclthattbepmiy·~ the ~reimburses~· uavel,. lodgtn& and 
. . 

suhsislmce mr.pemes at_,~ U.S. GoVflDlrieDt per dieauatm; and (v) comrmta to 
' '~ ,.,,...., ,' :"'<" "''' ,;"".._'"'f':'• '·• ,);, .... '' ... (,>o • r"""•) •' r•' "'\';,,. 

0
•0 ·,,;, • : •,;,.~.•••· o.( .... , 0 ••<• ••. ;Jll.. '' ( •• ~~' ' ''' "'' ":-'"''' ')Ito.'''./"·'• • • ' •• '•'•· j,'·'' • '<• • '•• •·'••<• '- • • •• • ,,. '< <'°H H• ; , » , ... , 0 , ,., , <f o( •• 

personal jmisdiction over·~ant in any u~ States Diitrict Court for purposes°" 
enfOJdng aity such subpoena. . 

· · ts. Defendant ap. that the Commission inay paent the Final Jud&inem to the 

· Comt for sipaiure and entry without fbrther notice.; 

: 
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. : " 

: : : :::J~µg)of;e.of~~orcing;.th~tl,11h~l-of the Finaliudgme11t.\ · 
.... · - .h. ... :. .. . ,,· ·.• . . ·.' ,, . · .. •··· 
.:· ~ . -: .. 

Approved as to form: 
. . . 

· .. '. H:au~?t41/l()t~ 
. J·{~A·M~!li~ •. ~, --·• ~. f/ .. 

· Moscowitz & MoscowitZ, P.A 
· Sabadell Financial Center. · 
· lll lBrickell Ave.,. Suite 2050 
Miami, FL 33131 

7 

..... 

'· 

--··.· ....... · .. ·.· .. 
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UNITEO: S'fA'fBS DISTIUCT COURT 
. DISTIUCT OP·mw JER.sBY •.. 

'• - .. 

SBCURITJES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS~ON. · 

Plain~. 
C.ANo._-_ 

v. 

DONALD R. TBSCHER et al., 

Defendants. 

·,. .- . 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT DONALD R. TESCBER ... · 
-f • • • , • ,- : • .. . . • . . : ..• ,·. 

. . . . .. . 

Donald R. Tescher ("Defendanf') havilig-enterecl a general appearance;_consented to the Court's 

juriSdiction over Defendant and the subjectmatter of this action; consented to: entry ·of this Fir)al 
.. . . l ·.. .. . . . .. . ' ·• . . ·. . . . . · . 

.,, .. ·,· ··- . -...... ,.;<··' ~-:. •: -·~--·····~ . . . ' .• -· .. .•.. :~ .,. .•.. ··:. ~ ';~. , .• 

Judgment without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to 

jurisdiction and except :as otherwise provided herein in paragraph VI); waived findings of fa.et 

and· conclusions of law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final JU:dgment: 

I. 
. . .. . 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and. 

Defendant's agents, servants,. employees, attomeys, and all persons_ in active concert or 

· participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service·or 

otherwi$C are permanently restrained and enjoined n:Qm violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

l~) of the Secmities Bxchange Actof 1934 (the "Exchange Actj [lS 11.s.c. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule lOb-S promulg~ thereun~er (17 c~F.R. § 240.tOb-5], by using any means or :' 
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··.;·. 

secUrlties exe~e, in·Connection witttthe Pme~ ot sale of an)' securiti: . : 
. . ..... , ... - . , .·. :;· •, ..... ··:······ ·- ·· .. · .. • . ········-· 

(a) · ·~~Of anydevie8,~~artificeto~ 
.. 

. ·. (b) · to ~ake any untrue stat~ebt orlilllaterial,factot tO oJllit u> std, atnatoriaJ &ct· .. 
,.i 

· .···.~.inontcr::io·111a¥~:~~-rnade,:ut:theii&htotim,e~ees .. · 
.·"· ··:';' .. 

. . : 

( e) . to engage i~ any act. practice, O?'cOUl'Se of business which optTaies or woul~ 

operate as a frawfor deeeit upon any penon. 
\. 

: IL 

... rr1sHEREB:vFOR•:oRDEREP. AJ>JUPGBD. AND vECREaPfhall>ofmidmt. 
: . ' ~- . ' . . . . . ' .. . ... · .·· . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . ... . . '. . : . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . . . . . . 

. and Defendant's agents;~, empl~yee'S, attOmeys, and allpersons in active conCert or' . . . . . 

. participation with them who i=eive a~tual'~tiee of.this F~ Judgment by penomd service or 

.'·.·: .. <>f#enYiSO&re.l>eiiDanettu1~·•~<feiij0ine<t.&om.ViotltiD1'8Ceti08·14(e)or~··&cb8D&e· 

.Act [JSU.S.C. § 78ii{e)] SndRuleJ4e·l[l7 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3]pomulgated thereunder, in 

Connection with any tender offer or request~ invitation. for tenders, from enpging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or.~pulative act .or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 
.. . . . . ... .. . . .. 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or, 

exchangeable for any
1 

such 'securitie& or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possessiOn of material . . . . . . . . ·. 

infonnation relating to such tender offer.that l)efendant knows or has. , 
; : . . .,. .. · . . . 

-~ ~ '" 

reason to know is nonpublic and kno\vs or has reason to know has been 

2 
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. . . ,.· . . . ... . . .. ·:-. ·. .. .. 
• • •h • • • • • • • • • • • 

. . . . . . . . 

. ·.·.··· ... ac:ct~~~or.~)'fniinthe.~~t¥~ofthcl ··. ·• 
. . ., . . : . : ·:·: .. < .: < :. ::~ -:: ':. . ; ·· .. -~:: . 

securities soiigh,t or to bi soiig\U by such tender offer; or any officer, 

. :._:. difector,parlnef J~P.t~yee ~r ()therpet10~ lcimll till.~haltoithe o~g­
. per&on or such i~, unles$·within a re&SOn8bteJil11e pri0r to any such-: 

. . . . ': . . . . ., 

. ,·. ' . . . , 

·.· purchase or sale stidt uuomMltion and m source are publicly,disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or · 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 
. . . 

. -· . which Defendant knows C>r has reason to know is nonpublic and knoWl or 
. ~-

. · -has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly ftom the 
' , . , . . . ' . .. . : . . . . . ... ~ . . : . . . ' . : . : . . . : . . : . . . . . . . . . . :. . . 

· • o~ person; ,tJ,te i~ e>(the ~ti"5 Sought oflo ~ ~p&bt,by stlch:. · · 
... '~der otiet; or -~otli~~ ~' ~t cmlpfoy~'.ad~;:or ot1tei< .. · . 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in wllich it is reasonably foreseeable that such _ 
• • • .... ,. • • : • • • • • • • • • •• , • • • •• • • • ., ,, '. ._.,..' • ·'" •• ·~· • ., :' ••• ,. - • ., • • • • ••• : ' ":" ~; ,· ••• ; • .:. •• • • •• • • ". ~ •••• "'· y •• ,;: ; •• ' .... : ':' ·-·· •••••• ·--:: •• ~ ••• "• ' 

. . . . ' 

. _ commµnication, is.likely to result in the puichase_ m_Sale of ~Curities. in the 
. . . . 

ma.triter desCribed in subparagraph (a) above; excc:pi that thiS paragtaph 

shall not apply .to a communication made in good faith. 

(i) to the officers, directors, ~ or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or.advi8ors or to.other persons· involved in the 

3' 
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- - . . ' . . . 

P~& fitutri<:in&· ~~fiPJtQf el(.~Qtt. qf ttle .. 
. •. - .. ' . . ·.··· ' .. 

. acti~ti~ of the issllet with res~'tO .s~li.tmder otrer, or 

(iii) ·. to>any J)er$>n ~uant t0 a ~~,~tany statUte or 
~~ or.te~ation }>tODlulgatai th•dOT.. · 
: ·' _: 

. :m .. 

IT IS FUR1HER ORDERED, ADJUOOEJ?, AND_DECREED tblltl>efendantis liable· 

fo. r disgorgemeot of $9,937~ representing profits g~ed as a result of the eondiici an.· eged in the , . . . . . .. . -- ' 

. - . .. ' . 

CompJaUrt. ~·with pn!judgmellt ~thereon in the amount of $690, and a ci\rll penattf · 
. . . 

· -··· · • , : • · inJhe amount'.of$9,937 pu?suantto S~~; 2tAoftlle Exclumge Act(lS:U.S~C. § 18u-11~ . 
. . . .. _ ·.,:' ... ~;· .· .. - .-~-~- .::-. -~ ... . .. ;:> .: .. ·.. _:\,··::;.:_ ... · . .· ,•:.. .· ·_ .· .. ; .::->.·· ,··.· .. · ... 

Defefid1Ifi·Sli~1~:Sfy,;t11is:(,bli~~·WP:.i~$20,s64•iO·~··~~uritiel:llJld·~·~···•.•-·: -.. 

. . .. . . . . . . .. . . . . . 

. DefendaDt 111ay ~ paymentelectronically to the Commission, ~ch Will provide 

•...• detiil~ACH·~~~WiJi, ~~iJPi>iiieQ• 1,aYiDe1itm:aY;IJiobe·li18de~ 
ftoJJ1 a bank accou11fyia Pay.go'V thrOUjh ~SBC Website it 

- . -

htg>://ww\v.Sec~gov/a]>Qut/ofti~oftn.htm. Defendant'rltay also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier'~ cheek, or United States postal money onJer payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commi~fon, which shall be delivered or mailed to 
. . ' 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK.73169' · .. • 

- ' 

and shall ~ ~panled by a letter identifyirig tbO case title, civil action n~, Ind_ Dant~ of 
. . . .. . ' . . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . ~ 

'purswmt t0this Final Judgment. _· 

4 
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence o~payment and case 
. . 

identifying inf~on to the Commission's counselin tbis action. By making this payment, .. , 
~ . . . ,_ . . : . . 

Defendant relinquishes ·all legal and equitable right, title, and.interest in such (Unds and. no part 
. ,· . . . .. . ·. . 

.. of the fbnds sba~tlbe ~to oer~t.. The ~()~On S~ send the ~ds paid puisuant . ... 
t0 this Final JudgrA~t to_ the United SU\teS Tteasuri .... 

. The con1nliSsion may enforce the. Co~·sj~ganent for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through o~ collection procedures miihorized by 

law) at any time * 14 days following entry of this Pinal Judgment. Defendant smill pay post .· 

judgment interest on. any delinquent amounts pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 1961 •.. · 

IV. 

IT IS HEREBY FURUIER .ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DEcR.EED that based on 

Defendant's cooperatl~ in a Commission investigation and/or related enforcement ·action,. the 

·co\lrt"is nOi"ol'deniil~ttOpay.a ciVii PeDlliY iD ex~sl""of$~,937~; Irat any"tmie· . 

following the·entry of tho~ Final Judgment me Commission obtains ~onnation indicating that . 
• 0 

Defendant knowingly provided materially false or misleading information or materials to the 

Commission or in a related proceeding, the <;ommission may, at its sole discretion ~ without 

prior notice to the Defendant, petition the Court for an order requiring Defendant to pay an 

additional civil penalty: In connection with any such petition and at any h~g held on sUch a 
~ • ' '<. 

·motion: (a) Defendant will be precluded ftom arguing that he did not violate the federal 

securitiei laws ~ alleged m the Complaint;. (b) ~fendant may not challenge the validity of the 

JUdgment, this Consent, or any. ~lated Undertakings; (c) the allegations of~ Complaint, solely 

for the purposes of such motion, shall be accepted as and deemed true by the Court; and (d) the 

5 
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CQurt may det~ the issues raised in the motion on the buis of affidaVits, declaratiollS, 

excerpts of SWOm deposition or investigative testimony,-~ documentary .evidence without 
'• A ' ', • )' '•' ' :, • 

. . . . . 

regard to the standards for summary judament containCd in Rulo ?6Cc) of the Federal Rules o~ · 
. . . . . . . 

Civil Pr®edure. Under.these-circumstances, tile parties ~Y t.ako diseovery, hicluding discovery . 

from 1ppro1>riate non-parties. · 
'. 

v. 
IT IS FURTIIER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

. . . 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein. and that Defendant 

shall comply;with all of the undertakinp and agreements set foi:th therein. 

VI. 

IT IS F{ffl.TIIER ORDER.ED, ADJUDGEµ, AND DECREED that, solely for purpoSes of 

.. ex~ns to diSchatge set forth ilt Section S~ of.the Bankruptcy Code_ ll U.S.C._._ §523, the ... 

allegations in the Complaint are tnie and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

diSgorgement, prej~gmen~ interest, oiVn penalty or other amowits due by ~endant under this 

F"mal Judgment or any other judgment,· order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with. this proceeding, is adebt for the violation by Def~ of the federal 
. . j . 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued lDlder such laws, ~ set forth in Section 

S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § S23(a)(19). 

VIL 

IT IS FURTHER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purpo&es of enforcing the tenns of this Final Judgment. 

6 

\. 

\ 
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' ' vm. 
. There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal .Rules of C~vil .. 

. . 
~rocedure, the Clerk is ordetcd to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without fmther n0tice. 

· ....... ~···· Datt.d;&d-1 . 2J) /h . . 

. ' . 

7· 
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UNITED; S1'ATES DISTJUCT C()URT 
.. DI~TIUC'f OF·~WJEIJ.s'.BY ·.· 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS~ON, . · 

Plain~. . . . 

C.A. No. • --v. 

DONALD R. TESCHER et al., 

.Defendants • 

•.. FINAL.~ooMENT.~ TOD~.-\N'f DoNALD a. TESCBEa •.. 
The $~ties·and Exchange C<!mmission having filed· a Complaint Ind Defendani: : .. 

"• 

Donald It Tescher ("Defendanf') Jtavhia entered·~ gener8l appearan~; consented to the Court's. 
" . . . .. . : . . . . . . .. · ·.· . ··' . . .· . . 

jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of tms action; consentecUo entry of this Final. 
. ··." . . . . ' . . . . . .. " 

Judgment withoUt. admitting' or denying the a11egations of die comJ;iliht (ucept as t0 .. 

jurisdiction and except as otherwise provided hetein in paragraphVI); waived findings of fact 

and· conclusions of law; Ind waived any right to appCal fiom this Final Jll;dgment: 

I. 

IT IS ·HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREEf? that Defendant anf! 

Defendant's agents, servants,. employees, attorneys. and all persons.in active concert or 

· participation with them who receive ~tual notice of'this Final Judgment by personal service or 
. , 

otherwise are pennanently restrained and.enjoined ~m violating,.directly orindllectly,.Section 
. . . '. . . . 

l~) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Actj [1511.s.c. § 78j(b)] and. 

Rule lOb-5 promul~ thereunder (17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or• .. 
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. . . , . 

. instrunlentaJityof i1:'~ CO~~ ()I'. of the.~ or of any facility.of an)'. national·• 
''('. 

securities exehaltge, fu.connectfoJ1 with thei)urChase or Sale of an)' security~'· 
•' ·· .. ·, ::.· ;,; : .· - . - ... _._. . .· ... •.·- .. ·. ·- . : 

·.·. . ,· .. · :. " . . ,' .. . . . .. 

, (b) , , to tnab any un1rUe $tiltenlent of ll'Materi.i fact or to oJDittO state .fl material fact 

~saey in onter~ Uia1ce:thC sta~ts 1l'lade, hi theli&ht of thl' (:l~- .· , 

Under which they were·~· not muleading; or 

( c) . to engage irt any ~ practice, or·caurse of business which opemles or would 
, , 

, , 

operate as a fraud 'or deceit upon ally person. 

. . -. ' 

IL . 

· ·ITIS:ilmmBYFUR'tHER ORDERED, AJ;lJUDOED, AND DECREED that t>efeiidant .. ·. 
•.-.· . ,. . . ·.· .. ·. ·,. . .· ·.. . :· . . : ...... ·.·.. . . . 

·and Defendant's agents, ~ employees, attorneys, and all persons in activ~ concert.or 

participation with them whQ receive actualnotl~ of_this Final Judgment by penonat service or 
. ' . . ! ··: . . . . 

' . . . . 

.·····•.·<>~sc;an,·~·~·m,if etiJofuea·ifamvit>tltiiia··s~<>r.·I4<e>' orthe.:&chlnae . 
. ,' . . ' 

Act [IS U$.C. § 78ii(e)] and.Rulel4e·3· (17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3]promulgated thereunder, in 

oonnection with any tender offer or request o~ invitation' for tenders, .from engaging in.any 

fraudulent, deceptive, oun~pulative act _or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selliDg or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 
> • • • ... ... • .. • 

sought or to be sought in such tendet offer, securities convertible into or. 

exchangeable for any 'such ,securitiel or any opuon or rigb.ho obtain or 

~of any. of the foregoing securities while·~ possessian of material 
, , , 

information l'f!udina. to such.tender offer·~ Pefendant .knows or has. ·. . 
:··· 

... ... .... 

reason to know is nonpublic and mows or h.as reason to know bas beell 

2 

\ . 
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: . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . : ·. ~ : . : . . . . . . : : ' . . . ... : : . . . . . . . . . : . ; . 

······~~~t~·~fn>nl·fhcl~~~tb,e~Of~··.· .. · 
. . . .::.::>· : ... -..:._.:::.;::·: ,,·. ,: ... ·.·. :,-:' ; : ;-:· .. ~··<. :.·(' .·:; 

seCurities So~.Ol'.fO 1*' sought by such~.~~"OI' any officet, 

····.··.·,···i;: ditedor, ~~:ern~1~;~.<>l"·Other:~~:,lo~*·•·c>tt,~fudi.ortbe•<>treiini 
.. person or sucll i~uer, tlritea.within a re&,on8b1e time prior to any such 

. . ... ' . . . . . . 
. . . . . ·. .... ': . . . ·... ' . . . .. . 

.· purcMse or sale stich iJllonilation and lts source are pubUCJydisclosed by. 

press release or otherwliJe; or 
' ' ' 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information. relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is.nonpublic .nd tcnows·or · 

'. ' has, reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly·fi:om the 
' . ' . 

·.·. •, . . . . . . ,. . : ' . .· '' .· ... ,· ·. .' ,· .. 

· · · oflering pers<>ii; the issUer of the .securities Sought ot to J,)e sou&lttby such · · 
: .- : . : . ·. . . ' .. . ' .. . . . .' .. :'. ·, ..... •. ;: : .· ... : .. . " , . · .. : :.'· .. :_. . . . ; ... . . . : ,,' . :, .· ·• . :. , __ .. : . ", . . · .. ·. . . . . . ·~. ' 

·· ~daotreti~~~~~.~.~.etnPtill'el.~~~orhther ·. 
person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

· ·under circumstances in which it is reuonably foreseeable that such 
,. :" ·., ... , •, . . ., ',•,·,. ..·.· . ' . · ...... ,... "=-:-<·· .,, ... ~... :·· ·' : · .. , .... ·:······ .. : ···':' '·'"'. ·"'•· · .. •·' . "••"•.' .:·;··· ;'· "'·"··' ''• •''• .... ···.'·" :. 

' ' ' 

commllbicatio~.is likely to• result in the purchase, or.s&le o(~Curities in the 
' ' • I 

~er <Iesaibed in subparagr. . · aph (a) above; except that this paragtaph· 
' , ' 

shall not apply to a communication made in gQOd faith . 

(i) to the officers, directors, ~ or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning,. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its ofticen, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to. other persons involved in the 

3 
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. . ' . . . . . 

. . pl8nn4t& fin&Jic:ing, P"'Paratlf.ll1OJ~ewtjc>n9f d\e .. 
. . . .::·;~: :. ·:::.;· .·:.:··· ··.: · __ . .. ··: :· ... ···· -. . .. >: :_ : . ·::· ··~ :· ._ .. - ':·:... . ... ; ' ..... ·.: ... ·:: ··:·.'" .· .' . . . 

~\lities O.tthe issum with respect to.S.Ucli ~offer;: or 
.. . : . . . ..·... '· .. ·.. , •. . 

(iii) to' anY person pursuant to. a requiteme~ ~fanY statute or . 
·, 

. . . . . . . . . .. .. 

nil~ e>r ~plation promulpted theretJrl •• --. 

-·1u. 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUOO~, AND.DECREED that Defendant is liable, 

for disgorgem~ of $9,937~ representing profits gained as a result of the condUct alleged in the 

· · Complllint, togdher with prejudgmenliDter~tthereon in tM .amount of $690, and ~ ciVil penatty_ ·. 
. . 

..• · • in tho amountof $9~931,ursuant to ~ll 21A of the &change J.ct[lS tJ~s.c. § 78u-1J; . 
... ,:, .. ·. :,·· ,· ., 

. .. ~el1dcmisiW1::8'ii$1)r.-this.obti~Qii·.,Yp1yjlla·s20,s~ to•.tlle--s~\lti~~•-aP<t···~-cbltrij,.· · 
: : ~· .. 

•" 

. .. . . . . . ' . . .. . . . . . . 

_ Defendant niay ~payment elc:ctronicallY to the Commission, Which Will provide:· 

······~.ACH~edWiie~~-~ P~-1i!ii·IJ$0~made~y··. 
from a bank ICCOunt·:vi& Pay.g()v thrOUSh aie.sB~ website it . 

httP://www.Sec;~govl@l><>utJofti~ofm .. hqn. Detendanf~y also pay by certified check, bank . · 

cashier'~ check,. or United States postal money or4ef payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commi~on, which shall be dellverec:' or ~led to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accowits Receivable Branch 
6SOO·South-MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 ·. : .·. 

. and shall be ~oomPmlied by aJeU. identifying tit~ case title, ci'Vil action number, 8nd lUune of. 
. . . . . . :: ... -. .. .. . • . . ,· ... >. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . , . . . . _, .·. : . . . ·. ~ . . . : ~ 

· this eolll"t; Do~a-R. rCSClier .as a <Jei~dant m tliis action; arid specHYinltfiat payttlent.:is ~ade· .. 
•. . . •• = :. -· •.•. ,:':' • : •. • . ·• : •. .·.·.·; 

'pursua11t tO this Final Judgment. · . 

4 

, .. 
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. ,, 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence o~payment and case 
. . 

identifying info1'1D8tion to thO Commission•s counsel in this action.· By mating this .,ayment, 

Defendant relinquishes.-11 legal and equitable right, .tide, anc1·mterest in such rjmds. aru1·no part 

. · Ofthe funds·sJMdfbe returned to Defe~. The ~oJJUDission shall sCmf t.he. ~ds paid puisuant 

tO this Final Jwtlm.e!U ~~United S,Ultes TteasmY.. ::'. 
. ... .. ,.' 

;· The conlDlb;~ion may enforce the ~·s judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through o~ collection procedures aUtborized by 

law) at any time ·.aftel'.14 days following entry of this Final Jildgment. Defendant shall pay post ,~ 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts·pursuant to 28 ·u.s~c. § 1961 •.. 

IV. 
. . . . .· . . . 

. . 

IT IS HEREBY FURTI.IER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that based on 

Defendant's cooperation in a Commission investigation and/or related enforcement action, the 

·. ,.CoUrt is n0toraenil115etenaanttopay.a;civll peDaltfm ex~Sl''of$9~37:;·.•Ilat ali,'ume'• 

following the entry of theFinll Judgment the Commission obtains ~onnation indicating that 

Defendant knowingly provided materially false or misleading infonnation or materials to the 

Commission or in a re~ proceeding.. the <;ommission may, at its sole discretion ~ without 

prior notice to the Defendant, petition the Court for an order requirinl Defendant to pay an 

additional. civil penalty: In connection with any such petition and at any heari~g held oi:a such a 

·motion: (a) Defendant will be precluded ftom araWna that he did not violate the. federal 

securities laws ~ alleged hi the Complaint;. (b) ~fendant may not challenge the validity of the 

JUdgment, this Consent, or any. ~lated Undertakings; (c) the allegations of tl,le.Complaint, solely 

for the purposes of such motion, shall be accepted as Ind deemed true by ·the Court;· and (d) the 

s 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 9   Filed 10/01/15   Page 19 of 22 PageID: 161



Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Document T·1 Filed 09/28/15 Page 6 of 7 PagelD: 12~ 

Court may d~ the issues raised in the motion on tll" basis of ~davits, declarations, 
. . . . . . 

excerpts of swom deposition or investigative testimony, and dOCl.imentary .evidence without. 
... . . " . 

,' . . ' 

regard to the standards for summary judgment contained in Rule ?6( c) ·of the Federal Rules of 
. . . 

Civil Procedure. Under these circumstances, the parties .-y take disCovery, hicluding discovery 

. from ·appropriate non-parties. , 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force an~ effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply· with all of the tmdertaldngs and agreements set fo~ therein. 

VI. 

IT IS ~THBR ORDER.SD, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purpo9es of 

ex~D$ to discharge set forth in SectionS~3 of tm Bankruptcy .. Code.1 l u.s.c. §.-523, the. 

allegations in the•Complaint are ~e and admitted by Defendant,.·and further, .&DY debt·for 

disgorgem=t, preju<fgmen~ interest, ciVn penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

·entered in connection with this ~eeding, is adebt for the violation by Defenda,nt of the federal 
> . 

secwities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, ~ set forth in Section 

523(a)(19) of the BanlQuptcy Code, 11U.S.C.§523(aX19) .. 

vn. 

· IT IS FURnIER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

6 

\. 

\ 
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vm. 
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule S4(b) of the Federal .Rules of C~vil 

~cedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthWith and without further ootice • 

. ·.·~·:· 

t/~ 

7· 

' ' . 
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